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Forward-looking Statement
This report contains forward-looking statements, which may be identified by the use of words like ‘plans’, ‘expects’, ‘will’, ‘anticipates’,
‘believes’, ‘intends’, ‘projects’, ‘estimates’ or other words of similar meaning. All statements that mention expectations or projections
about the future, including but not limited to statements about the Company’s strategy for growth, product development, market position,
expenditures and financial results are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and
expectations of future events. The Company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realized.
The Company’s actual results, performance or achievements could differ materially from those projected in any such forward-looking
statements. The Company assumes no responsibility to amend or revise any forward-looking statements from time to time based on any
subsequent developments, information or events.

At Iris Clothing’s, our focus is on creating an
enduring institution that represents an attractive
investment opportunity for both existing and
prospective shareholders. We intend to build a
company that has a profound impact in the lives
of our customers, and towards this, we are fully
committed to invest in our future growth.
We are augmenting capabilities, expanding
capacities, strengthening network, and driving
efficiencies to serve the evolving customer
requirements. Our innovation-led focus helps us
continuously explore opportunities both in our
existing segments and by penetrating newer
verticals.
We are enriching our collection of brands and
expanding our product offerings to provide greater
choice to customers. We are further amplifying our
branding and marketing initiatives to enhance our
brand presence and customer connect.

Simply put, we are prepping up to build
a future-ready organisation. As exciting
developments are shaping both within the
Company and across the industry, these
are unfolding new prospects and bringing
tremendous opportunities. We are channelising
our efforts to accelerate business growth by
leveraging our core competencies.
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About Us
Iris Clothing Limited is a fast-growing readymade garments company. We are engaged in
designing, manufacturing, branding, and selling garments for kids wear under the brand
DoReMe© in India. We manufacture a broad range of apparels for infants, toddlers, and junior
boys and girls that suit both indoor and outdoor requirements. Our ability to continuously
innovate and add new product lines makes us a preferred brand in the segment.

Our Vision
To provide the latest in kid’s fashion in
terms of both quality and affordability.
We strive to present the best of designs,
patterns, and fabrics to set the stage for
our little stars to shine.

Our Mission
To design garments for all the little knights and
princesses and to maximise our privilege of
adorning these little wonders by providing them
with both style and comfort while adorning them
in our wide range of attires.

Our product range

Tops

02

T-Shirts

Iris Clothings Limited

Trousers

Shorts

Dresses

Loungewear
/ Nightwear
Sets

Accessories

What emboldens us
Underpinning our operations are our unique strengths and capabilities which enable us to meet the
ever-changing needs of customers.

Our Strengths
Underpinning our operations are our unique strengths and capabilities which enable us to meet the
ever-changing needs of customers.

01

Integrated
Operations

02

Manufacturing
Prowess

03

Wide
Network

04

Dynamic
Management

05

Healthy
Relationships with
Suppliers

06

Quality
Consciousness

Key Numbers

80+

9

23

819

Distributors

Units spread across
4 locations

States of presence

Employees
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Managing Director’s
Message

Dear shareholders,
I am pleased to present to you the
Annual Report of Iris Clothing Limited
for FY 2019-20. At the outset, I hope
you and your family are safe. The year
under review has been one of the
most challenging the world has ever
seen. The outbreak of COVID-19 and
eventual lockdowns have brought a
new order to the world. While it would
take time for some sense of normalcy
to prevail, I hope all of you are taking
good care during these pandemic
times.
At Iris, we swam against the tide
and finished the year with a strong
financial performance. Our revenue
during the year has been impacted
due to Covid-19 and has declined
marginally by 2% as compared with
last year and stood at ` 60.93 Crores.
PAT stood at ` 3.94 Crores, declining
by 22% over the previous year due
to first time migration to Ind-AS and
Covid-19 circumstances.
This year, we steadfastly focussed on
solidifying our business fundamentals,
scaling up innovation to cater to the
evolving customer preferences. Our
04
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strategic framework leverages our
key strengths i.e. manufacturing,
distribution, innovation, and branding.
We have been taking big strides and
are confident about the next phase of
growth.
From having to push our products in
the initial days, we are now witnessing
a strong pull, and DoReMe© solidified
its position as a reputed and trusted
brand. This year, we entered the winter
clothing segment by developing a
whole new range of fleece sweatshirts,
hoodies, and polyfil foam suits for
infants and childrens. These new
categories will facilitate us to diversify
our product portfolio. Going ahead,
we intend to launch a dedicated infant
wear vertical with a wide range of
products. Along with this, we also plan
to sharpen our existing product mix
under the brand DoReMe© to meet the
rising demand for our products.
Our manufacturing excellence is
one of our biggest strengths. Steady
investments in setting up of new plants
and capacity expansion have enabled
us to sharpen our edge. You would be
delighted to know that we commenced

At Iris, we swam
against the tide
and finished
the year with a
strong financial
performance. Our
revenue during
the year has
been impacted
due to Covid-19
and has declined
marginally by
2% as compared
with last year and
stood at ` 60.93
Crores.

At the same
time, we are
stepping up our
digital marketing
and branding
initiatives to
better mirror our
customers’ fastchanging needs.

production at our new state-of-theart manufacturing unit in Uluberia,
Howrah (West Bengal). The unit will
help double our production capacity
from 4.2 million units per annum to 9
million units per annum and provide
us definite synergies and economies
of scale. I am also happy to confirm
that most of our manufacturing units
are back to pre-COVID-19 levels as
we are seeing good traction for our
products.
The thrust this year was also on
expanding our distribution network
and increasing brand visibility. We
added 80+ distributors across the
country. Particularly, we focused on
expanding our presence in Tier II and
III cities to propel our product reach.
Along with this, we also commenced
exports to Africa under DoReMe©
brand with plans to scale up in the
coming years.
At the same time, we are stepping
up our digital marketing and
branding initiatives to better mirror
the customers’ fast-changing needs.
A marked shift is being witnessed
in consumer behaviour in terms

of growing preference for online
shopping. Against this backdrop,
retailers will need to continuously
innovate to fully tap the opportunities,
by deploying the best available
technologies, social commerce, and
next-generation customer relationship
management tools.
We are aggressively expanding our
e-commerce sales and are in the
process of developing a channel
through our website. In addition,
we are also undertaking activities
to enhance our brand recall and
customer connect on social media
channels and eventually drive traffic
to our exclusive online store. Plans on
the anvil also include partnering with
e-commerce marketplaces to drive
higher sales and venturing into the
fast-growing organised retail segment.
A key intervention, among others,
has been the improvement in our
fabric quality, which has resulted in
significant reduction of fabric wastage.
We have also enhanced our skilling
and training process which in turn,
has, resulted in better productivity of
our team.

Going forward, we foresee tremendous
opportunities to grow in an otherwise
underpenetrated organised children’s
wear market. The long-term demand
drivers such as growing disposable
incomes, rapid urbanisation, evolving
customer preferences, greater brand
awareness, and internet retailing
remain intact. As the Company
transforms its approach to customer
experience and product marketing,
enabled by its cost excellence and
talented people, I believe we are
well positioned to drive high growth
and deliver long-term value to our
stakeholders.
Before closing, I would like to extend
my gratitude to our employees
for their persistent hard work and
support. I would also like to thank
our distributors, suppliers, partners,
bankers, customers and all our
shareholders for their unwavering trust
and confidence in us.
Warm Regards,

Santosh Ladha
Managing Director

Annual Report 2019-20
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Financial
Highlights
Total Revenue

(` in Lakhs)

(` in Lakhs)

5,310.13

6,218.88

6,093.12

330.98

505.73

394.02

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

EBITDA

(` in Lakhs)

Net Worth

(` in Lakhs)

890.73

1,125.15

1,379.57

1,013.05

2,858.16

3,216.48

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

Debt Equity Ratio
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PAT

(Times)

Return on Capital Employed

6.80

4.32

5.29

42

27

20

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20
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(%)

Board of
Directors

Mr. Santosh Ladha

Mrs. Geeta Ladha

He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce
and has 24 years of experience in the
textile industry. He is the founder promoter
of the Company and has conceptualised
and externalised the brand ‘DoReMe©.’ He
has in-depth understanding of the domestic
readymade apparels market. Being a
dynamic marketing personality, he looks
after the entire operations of the Company
directly with the support of a strong team.

She holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Commerce. She has 16 years of experience
along with an unmatched exuberance in
providing creative and innovative ideas to
update the products. She has been with the
Company since its inception.

Mr. Baldev Das Ladha

Mr. Nikhil Saraf

Non-Executive Director

Independent Director

He has an experience of more than 42
years in the textile industry. His vast
experience has been an asset to the
Company.

He is a qualified Chartered Accountant, Chartered Financial
Analyst as well as a Company Secretary and has over 18 years
of experience in finance, taxation and consulting. He has diverse
business interests including running his own accountancy firm,
recruitment firm and an investment advisory. An avid sports
enthusiast, he is also one of the Co-founders and CEO of Neev
Credit Private Limited-an education - focussed NBFC having offices
in several states of India. This has helped him develop a strong
business network across the country.

Managing Director

Executive Whole-time Director

Annual Report 2019-20
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Corporate
Information
Board of Directors:

Registrar & Transfer Agent:

Mr. Santosh Ladha
Managing Director

Cameo Corporate Services Limited
Subramanian Building No. 1,
Club House Road, Chennai - 600 002
Ph: 91 (44) 2846 0390/1989

Mrs. Geeta Ladha
Whole Time Director
Mr. Baldev Das Ladha
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Nikhil Saraf
Independent Director

Chief Financial Officer:
Mr. Niraj Agarwal

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer:

Internal Auditors:
Vimal & Seksaria
Chartered Accountants
31, Ganesh Chandra Avenue,
1st Floor, Kolkata - 700 013
Ph: 91 (33) 4004 8654

Committees of the Board:
Audit Committee

Mrs. Sweta Agarwal

Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee

Banker:

Nomination & Remuneration
Committee

Axis Bank Limited

Registered Office:
103/24/1, Foreshore Road
Shibpur, Howrah - 711 102
Ph: +91 33-2640 4674, 33-2637 3856

Statutory Auditor:
AMK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Stesalit Tower, Room No. 303, 3rd Floor,
E 2-3, Block EP & GP Sector-V, Salt Lake
Kolkata - 700 091
Ph: 91 (33) 40630462, 91 (33) 40697147
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Management Discussions and
Analysis Report
Industry Structure and Development

Outlook

In 2019-20, the Indian economy grew by 4.2% against 6.1%
expansion in 2018-19. Growth among advanced economies
was forecast to drop to 2% during the year. However, due
to global outbreak of Corona Virus Disease (COVID-19),
the International Monetary Fund has projected a sharp
contraction of the global economy to a status much worse
than what resulted from the 2008-09 financial crisis.

Our focus remains on a key agenda of localization for some
of high cost imports as a key de-risking mechanism against
future currency depreciation impact on our business.

Iris Clothings limited operates in manufacturing of
readymade garments in India. It is an integrated branded
fashion company with presence across both design and
distribution arms of fashion. A young and growing player in
India’s flourishing fashion trade, Iris Clothings limited seeks
to capture the trend of consumers becoming increasingly
attuned to fashion and brands.
The Company deals in manufacturing and trading of kids
wear clothing for both boys, girls and infants and accessories
related to fashion & lifestyle products.
The overall profitability of the Company during the year
under review, as compared to the previous year, has been
adversely affected due to unfavorable market conditions
prevailing for a major part of the year and to some extent
towards the latter part of the March profitability also got
impacted on account of the continuous lockdown directed
by the Central/State Government in order to prevent spread
of Corona Virus.

Opportunities and Threats
Currently the biggest threat is the continuous spread of
Corona Virus Disease and its impact. It is expected that
overall textile business will be severely affected which would
result in various job losses across the value chain. The
business will only be relieved our country is able to control
the COVID-19 pandemic. However, the Indian apparel
market still promises to be one of the fastest growing apparel
markets in the world. The growth is expected to be driven
by factors such as increased purchasing power, driving
growth in primary discretionary spend, better access and
availability of products, brand consciousness, increasing
urbanization and rising digitization.

Segments
The Company is dealing in only one segment i.e.,
manufacturing and trading of readymade garments and
clothing accessories.

Risk and Concerns
The management believes the new fiscal year will be full of
challenges due to uncertainties related to the pandemic.
Your Company expects demand to gradually come back to
normalcy over the next few quarters. Immediate strategic
imperatives will be to operate at heightened intensity
on safety and hygiene, optimize cost and cash flows,
accelerate digital and omni-channel outreach and stay
watchful of attractive real estate opportunities. As the year
progresses, and things return to normal, your Company on
expects to bounce back, with its new world-wide product
range ensuring competitive products having anti-microbial,
anti-viral features with different finishes along with growing
focus on sustainability range of products.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy
The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is
well defined in the organization. To maintain its objectivity
and independence, the internal audit function reports to
the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board. The
Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the
efficacy and adequacy of internal control systems in the
Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting
procedures and policies at all locations of the Company.
Based on the report of the internal audit function, process
owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas
and thereby strengthen the controls. The Company has
an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size,
scale and complexity of its operations. The internal financial
controls as laid down are adequate and were operating
effectively during the year.

Discussion on financial performance with
respect to operational performance
The discussion on financial performance with respect to
operational performance is given in Board’s Report.

Human Resource Development and Industrial
Relations
Our people are at the heart of how we do business. It is their
talent and skills that will take us to our dream of becoming
a $1 billion brand. We continue to invest in building best-

Annual Report 2019-20
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in-class fashion teams. Recognizing that the workforce will
provide critical competitive edge in its growth endeavor,
the Company has laid major emphasis on recruiting,
maintaining and developing its human asset base.

Cautionary Statement
Statements in this report on Management Discussion and
Analysis, describing the Company’s objectives, projections,
estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward
looking, considering the applicable laws and regulations.
These statements are based on certain assumptions and
expectation of future events. Actual results could, however,

differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important
factors that could make a difference to the Company’s
operations include finished goods prices, raw materials
costs and availability, global and domestic demand supply
conditions, fluctuations in exchange rates, changes in
Government regulations and tax structure, economic
developments within India and the countries with which the
Company has business contacts. The Company assumes no
responsibility in respect of the forward-looking statements
herein, which may undergo changes in future based on
subsequent developments, information or events.

For and on behalf of the Board
Iris Clothings Limited

Place: Howrah
Date: August 26, 2020
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Santosh Ladha
Managing Director
(DIN: 03585561)

Geeta Ladha
Whole Time Director
(DIN: 03585488)

Board’s Report
Dear Members,
Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 9th Annual Report on the business and operations of your Company together
with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020.

Financial Results
The summarized performance of the Company for the Financial Year March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are as under:
(Amount in ` lakhs)
Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Total Income

6093.12

6218.87

Total expenses

5538.15

5510.50

Profit or Loss before Exceptional Extraordinary items

554.97

708.37

Profit or Loss before tax

554.97

708.37

Less: Tax Expenses

160.95

202.64

Profit or Loss after Tax

394.02

505.73

Particulars

Review of Business Operations and Future
Prospects

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor
Education and Protection Fund

During the year under review, the income and net profit of

The provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013
do not apply as there was no dividend declared and paid
during previous year.

the Company stands at ` 6093.12 lacs and ` 394.02 lacs
respectively. Your Directors are optimistic about company’s
business and hopeful of better performance with increased
revenue in next year.

Impact of Corona Virus Disease (COVID- 19)
The global outbreak of Corona Virus Disease not only
impacted our Company but the whole nation. To reduce
the spread of COVID-19, the Government of India had
declared complete lockdown throughout the country and
much restrictions on movement of persons. However, the
Company is committed towards providing uninterrupted
supply of goods and services to its customer and has
actively implemented business continuity plans including
the option of working from home facility.

Dividend
To conserve resources and plough back profits, your

Material Changes and Commitment, if
Any, Affecting the Financial Position of the
Company Occurred Between the End of
the Financial Year to Which This Financial
Statements Relate and the Date of the Report
No material changes and commitments, affecting the
financial position of the Company have been occurred
between the end of the financial year to which this financial
statement relates and the date of the report except the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo
The provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 do not apply to our Company.

Directors have not recommended any dividend for the
period under review.

Transfer to Reserves
During the year under review, your Directors have not
proposed to transfer any amount to Reserves.

Statement Concerning Development and
Implementation of Risk Management Policy of
the Company
The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy
as the elements of risk threatening the Company’s existence
Annual Report 2019-20
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are very minimal. The Company is not subject to any specific

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

risk except risks associated with the general business of the

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Rathi (DIN: 00669100), Independent

Company as applicable to the whole industry. At present, the

Director

Company has not identified any element of risk which may

January 10, 2020. Except this, there was no change in the

threaten the existence of the Company.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company

Details of Policy Developed and Implemented
by the Company on Its Corporate Social
Responsibility Initiatives
The Company has not developed and implemented any
Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the said
provisions are not applicable on your Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2020 as per Section 135(1)

has

resigned

from

the

Company

w.e.f.

during the Financial Year 2019-2020.
Mrs. Geeta Ladha retires by rotation and being eligible offers
herself for re-appointment, as per the provisions of Section
152 of the Companies Act, 2013.
None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified for
appointment or for continuation as Director of the Company

of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under.

in terms of the provisions of Section 164 of the Companies

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or
Investments Made Under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013

Board Meetings

The Company has not given any loan or provided any
guarantee or made any investment under provision of Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the particulars of
loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company are

Act, 2013.

During the period under review, 10 (Ten) meetings of Board
of Directors were held on April 22, 2019, May 24, 2019,
June 13, 2019, June 27, 2019, September 2, 2019, November
13, 2019, January 11, 2020, January 29, 2020, February 1,
2020 and February 20, 2020 respectively. The intervening

given in notes to Financial Statements.

gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements
Made with Related Parties

Declaration by Independent Directors

All transactions entered with Related Parties during the
financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in
ordinary course of business and the provision of Section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not attracted. Thus,
disclosure in Form AOC- 2 is not required. Further, there are
no materially significant related party transactions during the

under the Companies Act, 2013.

The

Company

has

received

requisite

declarations/

confirmations from all the Independent Directors confirming
their independence as per provisions of Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Board relies on their declaration
of independence.

Directors or other designated person which may have a

Familarisation Programme for Independent
Directors

potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

To familiarize the new Independent Directors with the

However, details of all related party transactions are given in

strategy, operations and functions of our Company, the senior

Notes to Financial Statements.

managerial personnel make presentation for the inductees

period under review made by the Company with Promoters,

about the Company’s strategy, operations, product and

Explanation or Comments on Qualifications,
Reservations or Adverse Remarks or
Disclaimers Made by the Auditors In Their
Reports
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks
made by the Statutory Auditors in their reports.

Listing with Stock Exchanges
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on SME Platform
of NSE Limited w.e.f. October 23, 2018. The Company is
regular in payment of Annual Listing Fees. The Company has
paid listing fees the financial year 2020-21.
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service offerings, markets, finance, quality etc.
Further, at the time of appointment of an Independent
Director, the company issues a formal letter of appointment
outlining his/ her role, function, duties and responsibilities
as a director.

Separate Meeting of the Independent
Directors
A

separate

meeting

of

Independent

Directors

was

held on December 28, 2019, without the attendance of
Non - Independent Directors and members of Management.

Committees of the Board
Presently, the Board has two Committee, the details of which
are given below:
Audit Committee
The Board of Directors had constituted an Audit Committee
in compliance with the provision of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013. During the year under review, 2 (two)
meetings of Audit Committee were held on May 24, 2019 and
November 13, 2019. The Audit Committee reviews the Audit
Reports submitted by the internal auditors and statutory
auditors, financial results and effectiveness of internal audit
process, the Company’s Risk Management Strategy and
vigil mechanism.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Board of Directors had constituted Nomination and
Remuneration Committee in compliance with the provision
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. During the
year under review, 1 (one) meeting of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was held on February 1, 2020.
This Committee identifies the persons, who are qualified to
become Directors of the Company/who may be appointed
in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid
down, recommend to the Board their appointment and
removal and also carries out evaluation of every director’s
performance.

Annual Evaluation by the Board
Pursuant to the provision of Companies Act, 2013, Rules
made thereunder and as per policy of the Company, separate
meeting of independent directors was held to evaluate the
performance of non-independent directors, performance
of the board as a whole, taking into account the views of
executive directors and non-executive directors.
Performance evaluation of independent directors was done
by the entire board, excluding the independent director
being evaluated. Evaluation of the performance of the board,
its committees and individual directors has been carried
out after taking into consideration attendance, contribution,
remuneration and other criteria as recommended and
reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of the Company.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy
The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to
provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees
to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual
or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of
Conduct or Ethics Policy. It aims to provide an avenue for
employees through this policy to raise their concerns on
any violation of legal or regulatory requirements, suspicious

fraud, misfeasance, misrepresentation of any financial
statements and reports. It also provides for direct access to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Vigil Mechanism/
Whistle Blower Policy is being made available on the
Company’s website www.irisclothings.in.

Remuneration Policy
Pursuant to provisions of Section 178(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Board has framed a policy for selection,
appointment and remuneration of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
Directors. The Remuneration Policy has been uploaded on
the Company’s website www.irisclothings.in.

Annual Return
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of Annual Return
is furnished in Form MGT-9 and appended to this report as
“Annexure I”.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state that:
a)	in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;
b)	
the directors had selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the company for that period;
c)	the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
d)	the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a
going concern basis;
e)	the Directors had laid down internal financial controls
to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and
f)	
the directors had devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.
Annual Report 2019-20
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Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate
Companies
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or
Associate Company as on March 31, 2020.

Deposits
The Company has not accepted any deposit form the public
during the year under review as covered the provisions
of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with
Reference to Financial Statements
The Company has its internal financial control systems
commensurate with the size and complexity of its operations,
to ensure proper recording of financials and monitoring
of operational effectiveness and compliance of various
regulatory and statutory requirements. The management
regularly monitors the safeguarding of its assets, prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records including timely
preparation of reliable financial information.

Auditors
Statutory Auditor
At the 8th Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on August 31, 2019, M/s. AMK & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, had been appointed as statutory auditors of
the Company for a term of 5 years from the Financial Year
2019-20 onwards.
Internal Auditor
During the year under review, M/s. Vimal & Seksaria,
Chartered Accountants, were appointed as the Internal
Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20.

Auditors’ Report
The Auditors’ Report read together with the Notes on
Accounts are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for
any further explanation and comments. No frauds were
reported by the Auditor se under sub-section 12 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Cost Records and Cost Audit
The provisions of cost records and cost audit as specified by
the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

Corporate Governance
The Company, being listed on the SME Platform of National
Stock Exchange of India Limited, is exempted from provisions
of Corporate Governance as per Regulation 15 of the SEBI
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(LODR) Regulations, 2015. Hence, no corporate governance
report is required to be disclosed with Annual Report. It is
pertinent to mention that the Company follows majority of the
provisions of the corporate governance voluntarily as a part
of good Corporate Governance.

Details of Significant and Material Orders
Passed by the Regulators, Courts and
Tribunals
There has been no significant and material order passed by
any regulators or courts or tribunals, impacting the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

Disclosure Under the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013
The Company has always been committed to provide a
safe and conducive work environment to its employees. The
Company in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line
with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women
at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013. Further, the Company has constituted an Internal
Complaints Committee for redressing the complaints against
sexual harassment. There was no complaint received during
the year.

Remuneration Ratio to Directors/KMP/
Employees
The information required under Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment
& Remuneration of managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in
respect of Directors/employees of the Company is attached
as “Annexure-II” to this Report.

Other Disclosure Requirements
•	
The disclosures and reporting with respect to
issue of equity shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise is not applicable as the
Company has not issued any such shares during the
reporting period.
•	
The disclosures and reporting on issue of shares
(including sweat equity shares and Issue of Shares
under Employees Stock Option Scheme) to employees
of the Company under any scheme are not applicable
as the Company has not issued any such shares during
the reporting period.
•	
The company has complied with the applicable
provisions of Secretarial Standards SS-1 and SS-2 with
respect to convening of Board Meetings and General
Meetings during the period under review.

•	
There was no change in the nature of business
of company.

Management Discussion And Analysis Report
As required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations (LODR), 2015, the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report is presented in separate
section forming part of the Annual Report.
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Annexure - I

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020
{Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1)
of the Companies (Management Administration) Rules, 2014}

I.

Registration & Other Details:
1

CIN

L18109WB2011PLC166895

2

Registration Date

27th August, 2011

3

Name of the Company

Iris Clothings Limited

4

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Company Limited by Shares/Non- Govt. Company

5

Address of the Registered office & contact details

103/24/1, Foreshore Road, Shibpur, Howrah-711102

6

Whether listed company

Yes

7

Name, Address & contact details of the
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any.

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Ltd
"Subramanian Building",
No.1 Club House Road,
Chennai-600 002
Phone: (033) 2248-2248/2243-5029
E-mail Id: cameo@cameoindia.com

II. Principal Business Activities of the Company:
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company are given below:S l . Name and Description of main products /
No. services
1

NIC Code of the
Product/service

% to total turnover
of the company

14101

100%

Manufacturing of readymade garments

III. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies:
The Company has no holding, subsidiary and associate company.

IV. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(i)

Category-wise Share Holding
Category Category of
code
Shareholder

A.

1.
a.

b.
c.

16

Shareholding of
Promoter and
Promoter Group
Indian
Individuals/Hindu
Undivided
Family
Central Government/
State Government(S)
Bodies Corporate

Iris Clothings Limited

No. of shares held at the
beginning of the year
Demat Physical
Total

3141579

0 3141579

% of
Total
Shares

No. of shares held at the
end of the year
Demat Physical
Total

67.3988 3141579

0 3141579

%
Change
% of during
Total the year
Shares

67.3988

0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0.0000

Category Category of
code
Shareholder

d.
e.
2.
a.

b.
c.
d.
e.

B.
1.
a.
b.
c.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.
2.
a.
b.

c.
d.

Financial Institutions/
Banks
ANY OTHER
SUB - TOTAL (A)(1)
Foreign
Individuals (NonResident Individuals/
Foreign Individuals)
Bodies Corporate
Institutions
Qualified Foreign
Investor
Any Other
Sub - Total (A)(2)
Total Share Holding
of Promoter and
Promoter Group (A)
= (A)(1)+(A)(2)
Public Shareholding
Institutions
Mutual Funds/Uti
Financial Institutions/
Banks
Central Government/
State Government(S)
Insurance Companies
Foreign Institutional
Investors
Foreign Venture
Capital Investors
Qualified Foreign
Investor
Any Other
Sub - Total (B)(1)
Non-Institutions
Bodies Corporate
Individuals I. Individual
Shareholders
Holding Nominal
Share Capital Upto
` 1 Lakh
II. Individual
Shareholders
Holding Nominal
Share Capital In
Excess of ` 1 Lakh
Qualified Foreign
Investor
Any Other
Hindu Undivided
Families
Sub - Total (B)(2)
TOTAL PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDING
(B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2)
Total (A)+(B)

No. of shares held at the
beginning of the year
Demat Physical
Total

% of
Total
Shares

0

0

0

0.0000

0.0000

3141579

0

3141579

0 3141579

67.3988

0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0.0000

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0.0000
0.0000
0.0000

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0.0000
0.0000
0.0000

0.0000
0.0000
0.0000

0
3141579

0
0

0
3141579

0
0
0 3141579

0.0000
67.3988

0.0000
0.0000

0
0

0
0

0
0

0.0000
0.0000

0
0

0
0

0
0

0.0000
0.0000

0.0000
0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0.0000

0
0

0
0

0
0

0.0000
0.0000

0
0

0
0

0
0

0.0000
0.0000

0.0000
0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0.0000

550400

0

550400

11.8081

467200

0

467200

10.0232

-1.7849

120500

0

120500

2.5851

98100

0

98100

2.1046

-0.4805

757700

35000

792700

17.0064

896700

0

896700

19.2376

2.2311

0

0

0

0.0000

0

0

0

0.0000

0.0000

56000

0

56000

1.2014

57600

0

57600

1.2357

0.0343

0
57600
0 1519600
0 1519600

1.2357
32.6011
32.6011

0.0343
0.0000
0.0000

0 4661179 100.0000

0.0000

0
56000
35000 1519600
35000 1519600

4626179

35000

0

67.3988 3141579

0.0000
0
67.3988 3141579

1.2014
57600
32.6011 1519600
32.6011 1519600

4661179 100.0000 4661179

0

%
Change
% of during
Total the year
Shares

0

56000
1484600
1484600

0.0000

No. of shares held at the
end of the year
Demat Physical
Total
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Category Category of
code
Shareholder

C.

Financial Statements

No. of shares held at the
beginning of the year
Demat Physical
Total

% of
Total
Shares

No. of shares held at the
end of the year
Demat Physical
Total

%
Change
% of during
Total the year
Shares

Shares Held by
Custodians and
Against Which
Depository Receipts
have been Issued
Promoter and
Promoter Group
Public
Total Custodian (C)
Grand Total
(A)+(B)+(C)

0

0

0
0
4626179

0
0
35000

0

0.0000

0

0

0
0.0000
0
0
0.0000
0
4661179 100.0000 4661179

0

0.0000

0.0000

0
0
0.0000
0
0
0.0000
0 4661179 100.0000

0.0000
0.0000
0.0000

(ii) Shareholding of promoters								
Sl. Shareholder’s Name
No.

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year
No of
shares

1

Geeta Ladha

2

Santosh Ladha

% of total % of shares
shares of
pledged /
the encumbered
company
to total
shares

Shareholding at the
end of the year
No of
shares

% of total
shares of
the
company

% change
in
% of shares shareholding
during the
pledged /
year
encumbered
to total
shares

2207547

47.3602

0.0000

2207547

47.3602

0.0000

0.0000

345074

7.4031

0.0000

345074

7.4031

0.0000

0.0000

3

Baldev Das Ladha

208000

4.4623

0.0000

208000

4.4623

0.0000

0.0000

4

Santosh Ladha

186368

3.9983

0.0000

186368

3.9983

0.0000

0.0000

5

Kamala Devi Ladha

125116

2.6842

0.0000

125116

2.6842

0.0000

0.0000

6

Baldev Das Ladha

69474

1.4904

0.0000

69474

1.4904

0.0000

0.0000

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Sl. Name of the Shareholder
No.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
No. of shares

1

2

3

4

5

6

18

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

% of shares
pledged /
encumbered to
total shares

No. of shares

% of shares
pledged /
encumbered to
total shares

Geeta Ladha
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

2207547

47.3602

2207547

47.3602

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

2207547

47.3602

2207547

47.3602

Santosh Ladha
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

345074

7.4031

345074

7.4031

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

345074

7.4031

345074

7.4031

Baldev Das Ladha
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

208000

4.4623

208000

4.4623

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

208000

4.4623

208000

4.4623

Santosh Ladha
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

186368

3.9983

186368

3.9983

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

186368

3.9983

186368

3.9983

KAMALA DEVI LADHA
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

125116

2.6842

125116

2.6842

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

125116

2.6842

125116

2.6842

At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

69474

1.4904

69474

1.4904

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

69474

1.4904

69474

1.4904

Baldev Das Ladha

Iris Clothings Limited

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sl. Name of the Shareholder
No.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
No. of shares

1

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

% of total
shares of
the company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of
the company

238400

5.1145

238400

5.1145

-176000

3.7758

62400

1.3387

Ajinkya Mercantile Private Ltd
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019
Sale 30-Aug-2019
Purchase 08-Nov-2019

152000

3.2609

214400

4.5996

-8000

0.1716

206400

4.4280

Sale 21-Feb-2020

-6400

0.1373

200000

4.2907

Sale 13-Mar-2020

-65600

1.4073

134400

2.8833

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

134400

2.8833

134400

2.8833

At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

16000

0.3432

16000

0.3432

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

16000

0.3432

16000

0.3432

187200

4.0161

187200

4.0161

Sale 24-Jan-2020

Having Same Pan
1

2

Ajinkya Mercantile Pvt Ltd

DISCORD EXIM PRIVATE LIMITED
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019
Sale 30-Aug-2019

-35200

0.7551

152000

3.2609

Sale 08-Nov-2019

-152000

3.2609

0

0.0000

0

0.0000

0

0.0000

166900

3.5806

166900

3.5806

Sale 23-Aug-2019

-3200

0.0686

163700

3.5119

Sale 30-Aug-2019

-1600

0.0343

162100

3.4776

Sale 13-Mar-2020

-4800

0.1029

157300

3.3746

157300

3.3746

157300

3.3746

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020
3

Sushila Devi Mundhra
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020
4

Madhu Rathi
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019
Sale 23-Aug-2019
Sale 30-Aug-2019

6

7

8

3.5699

166400

3.5699

-3200

0.0686

163200

3.5012

-1600

0.0343

161600

3.4669

161600

3.4669

161600

3.4669

At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

91600

1.9651

91600

1.9651

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

91600

1.9651

91600

1.9651

At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

53000

1.1370

53000

1.1370

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

53000

1.1370

53000

1.1370

At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

46600

0.9997

46600

0.9997

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

46600

0.9997

46600

0.9997

At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

41600

0.8924

41600

0.8924

Sale 05-Apr-2019

-1600

0.0343

40000

0.8581

Sale 12-Apr-2019

-4800

0.1029

35200

0.7551

Purchase 11-Oct-2019

3200

0.0686

38400

0.8238

Purchase 10-Jan-2020

3200

0.0686

41600

0.8924

41600

0.8924

41600

0.8924
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166400

PUNITA SINGHANIA

SHARMILA GAURANG VASANI

Gaurang Shashikant Vasani
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Sl. Name of the Shareholder
No.

9

10

Financial Statements

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of
the company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of
the company

At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

41400

0.8881

41400

0.8881

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

41400

0.8881

41400

0.8881

Vikash Patwari

Laxmi Agarwal
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

38400

0.8238

38400

0.8238

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

38400

0.8238

38400

0.8238

4800

0.1029

4800

0.1029

-4800

0.1029

0

0.0000

9600

0.2059

9600

0.2059

Purchase 31-Jan-2020

1600

0.0343

11200

0.2402

Purchase 28-Feb-2020

12800

0.2746

24000

0.5148

Purchase 20-Mar-2020

75426

1.6181

99426

2.1330

Purchase 27-Mar-2020

94174

2.0203

193600

4.1534

Purchase 31-Mar-2020

8000

0.1716

201600

4.3250

201600

4.3250

201600

4.3250

New Top 10 As On (31-Mar-2020)
11

K R Developers LLP
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019
Sale 09-Aug-2019
Purchase 27-Dec-2019

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020
12

Gadakh Udayan Shankarrao .
JT1 : Rahul Ashok Pawar
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

13

14

0

0.0000

0

0.0000

Purchase 09-Aug-2019

9600

0.2059

9600

0.2059

Purchase 30-Aug-2019

174400

3.7415

184000

3.9474

Purchase 06-Sep-2019

1600

0.0343

185600

3.9818

Sale 13-Mar-2020

-72000

1.5446

113600

2.4371

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

113600

2.4371

113600

2.4371

Vishal Patwari
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

14400

0.3089

14400

0.3089

Demated 13-Sep-2019

35000

0.7508

49400

1.0598

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

49400

1.0598

49400

1.0598

Choice Equity Broking Private Limited
At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

36800

0.7894

36800

0.7894

Sale 05-Apr-2019

-1600

0.0343

35200

0.7551

Purchase 19-Apr-2019

4800

0.1029

40000

0.8581

Purchase 10-May-2019

1600

0.0343

41600

0.8924

Purchase 17-May-2019

1600

0.0343

43200

0.9268

Purchase 09-Aug-2019

1600

0.0343

44800

0.9611

-3200

0.0686

41600

0.8924

Purchase 22-Nov-2019

1600

0.0343

43200

0.9268

Purchase 31-Dec-2019

1600

0.0343

44800

0.9611

Sale 10-Jan-2020

-3200

0.0686

41600

0.8924

Sale 31-Jan-2020

-1600

0.0343

40000

0.8581

Sale 28-Feb-2020

-1600

0.0343

38400

0.8238

Purchase 06-Mar-2020

3200

0.0686

41600

0.8924

Purchase 20-Mar-2020

1600

0.0343

43200

0.9268

Purchase 27-Mar-2020

3200

0.0686

46400

0.9954

46400

0.9954

46400

0.9954

Sale 11-Oct-2019

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sl. Name of the Shareholder
No.

1

2

3

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of
the company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of
the company

At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

2207547

47.3602

2207547

47.3602

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

2207547

47.3602

2207547

47.3602

At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

345074

7.4031

345074

7.4031

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

345074

7.4031

345074

7.4031

At the beginning of the year 30-Mar-2019

69474

1.4904

69474

1.4904

At the end of the Year 31-Mar-2020

69474

1.4904

69474

1.4904

Geeta Ladha

Santosh Ladha

Baldev Das Ladha

V. Indebtedness:
Particulars

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

20,11,77,635

-

-

20,11,77,635

-

-

-

-

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i)

Principal Amount

ii)

Interest due but not paid

iii)

Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

-

-

-

-

20,11,77,635

-

-

20,11,77,635

4,52,68,826

-

-

4,52,68,826

-

-

-

-

4,52,68,826

-

-

4,52,68,826

24,64,46,461

-

-

24,64,46,461

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

24,64,46,461

-

-

24,64,46,461

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
•

Addition

•

Reduction

Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i)

Principal Amount

ii)

Interest due but not paid

iii)

Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
A.

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and / or Manager:
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration
No.

1

2
3
4

5

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as % of profit
- Others, specify…
Others, please specify
Total
Ceiling as per the Act

Name of MD/WTD/Manager

Total Amount

Mr. Santosh Ladha
Managing Director

Mrs. GeetaLadha
Whole-time Director

1,20,00,000

1,20,00,000

2,40,00,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,20,00,000

1,20,00,000

2,40,00,000
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Remuneration to other directors:
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration
No.
1

Name of Directors

Independent Directors

Mr. Nikhil Saraf

• Fee for attending board /committee meetings
• Commission
• Others, please specify
2

Total (1)

3

Other Non-Executive Directors

Total Amount

40,000

40,000

-

-

-

-

40,000

40,000

Mr. Baldev Das Ladha

• Fee for attending board /committee meetings
• Commission
• Others, please specify

40,000

40,000

-

-

-

-

4

Total (2)

40,000

40,000

5

Total (B)=(1+2)

80,000

80,000

Ceiling as per the Act

C.

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Managing Director / Manager / Whole-time Director:
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration
No.

1

Key Managerial Personnel
Sweta agarwal
Niraj Agarwal
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Gross salary
Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as % of profit
- Others, specify…
Others, please specify
Total

2
3
4

5

Total

360,000

324,000

6,84,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

360,000

324,000

6,84,000

VII. Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding of Offences: NIL
Type

Section of the
Companies
Act

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty /
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority Appeal made,
[RD / NCLT /
if any (give
COURT]
Details)

Penalty

-

-

-

-

Punishment

-

-

-

-

Compounding

-

-

-

-

Penalty

-

-

-

-

Punishment

-

-

-

-

Compounding

-

-

-

-

Penalty

-

-

-

-

Punishment

-

-

-

-

Compounding

-

-

-

-

A. Company

B. Directors

C. Other Officers In Default
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Annexure: I

i.	The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the
financial year are given hereunder:
Name

Designation

Remuneration Paid
FY 2019-2020

Ratio of remuneration to
median remuneration
of employees (including
whole-time Directors)

1. Geeta Ladha

Whole-time Director

1,20,00,000

151.52

2. Santosh Ladha

Managing Director

1,20,00,000

151.52

ii.	The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary of Manager, if any, in the financial year are given hereunder:
Name

Designation

% increase in remuneration in the financial year

Geeta Ladha

Whole-time Director

-

Santosh Ladha

Managing Director

-

Niraj Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer

-

Sweta Agarwal

Company Secretary

-

iii.

The percentage of increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: Nil.

iv.

The number of permanent employees on the role of company as on March 31, 2020 is 819 nos.

v.	Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:
Average percentage increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel during 2019-2020

Nil

The percentage increase in the Managerial Remuneration

Nil

vi.	Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company: The Board of Directors of the
Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
Iris Clothings Limited

Place: Howrah
Date: August 26, 2020

Santosh Ladha
Managing Director
(DIN: 03585561)

Geeta Ladha
Whole Time Director
(DIN: 03585488)
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of IRIS Clothings Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS financial
statements
Opinion
We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of IRIS
Clothings Limited (“the Company”) which comprise the
balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the statement of Profit
and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind
AS financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2020, and its profit, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under
Srl.
No.
1

those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

Estimation Uncertainty relating to the global
pandemic COVID-19
In assessing the recoverability of financial assets and
non-financial assets, the Company has considered
internal and external information up to the date of
approval of these financial statements.

Principal Audit Procedures
We have reviewed management assessment on recovery
and compliance relating to financial and non-financial
assets. We also discussed with the Key Management
and reviewed the supporting documents along-with the
adequacy of Internal Controls over the carrying amount
of the assets.
Our Observations
Based on our review and audit procedures, we found that
the management assessment on
recovery of the carrying amount of the financial and nonfinancial assets is reasonable.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS
financial statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies;
Annual Report 2019-20
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making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.
•

 valuate the appropriateness of accounting policies
E
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

•

 onclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
C
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

•

 valuate the overall presentation, structure and
E
content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing
the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Ind AS financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS
financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Companies act, 2013, we are also responsible
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	We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
	
We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
	From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements
(1)	As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure-A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
(2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a)	We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.
(b)	In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

(e)	On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.
(f)	With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
(g)	With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:
		

i.	The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements – Refer Note 34 (i) (1)
to the financial statements.

		

ii.	
The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

appears from our examination of those books.
(c)	The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.
(d)	
In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

iii.	
There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For AMK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 327817E
Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia
Partner
Membership No. 059363
UDIN:
Place: Kolkata
Date: June 29, 2020
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Annexure “A” to the
Independent Auditors’ Report
Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of IRIS Clothings Limited
referred to in paragraph 1 of Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements in our
Report of even date
(i)	
In respect of its fixed assets (property, plant and
equipment):
a)	
The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.
b)	The fixed assets were physically verified during
the year by the Management in accordance with
a programme of verification, which in our opinion
provides for physical verification of all the fixed
assets at reasonable intervals.
		
According to the information and explanations
given to us no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.
c)	
According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records examined by us and
based on the examination of the registered sale
deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided
to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising
all the immovable properties of freehold land, are
held in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheet date.
(ii)	
As explained to us, the inventories were physically
verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies
were noticed on physical verification.
(iii)	
The Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnership or other parties covered in
the Register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
(iv)	
The Company has not granted any loans, made
investments or provided guarantees and hence
reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is not
applicable.
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(v)	According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not accepted any deposit during
the year. In respect of unclaimed deposits, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Sections 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013.
	As informed to us, no order has been passed by the
Company law Board and National Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any other tribunal
against the company for any violation of deposit rules
as referred above.
(vi)	The maintenance of cost records has been specified
by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the
cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to
the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
as amended prescribed by the Central Government
under sub- section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie,
the prescribed cost records have been made and
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.
(vii)	According to the information and explanations given to
us, in respect of statutory dues:
a)	
The Company has generally been regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Income tax, Goods and Service
Tax, Customs Duty, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate
authorities.
b)	
There were no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Income- tax, , Goods
and Service Tax, Customs Duty, cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2020 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

c)	Details of dues of Income Tax, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax which have not been deposited as on March 31,
2020 on account of disputes are given below:
Name of the Statue
Income Tax Act, 1961

Nature of Dues

Amount (`)
(Net of Deposit)

Period to which the
amount relates

Forum where the
dispute is pending

Income Tax

1,35,66,260/-

A.Y. 2013-14

C.I.T.(Appeal)

(viii)	The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
or borrowing to a financial institution, bank, government
or dues to debenture holders.
(ix)	The Company has not raised money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments. The money has been raised by way of
term loans during the year and utilized the same for the
purposes which they are raised.
(x)	No fraud by the company or any material fraud on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the year.
(xi)	
The Company has paid or provided managerial
remuneration during the current financial year, in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Companies Act.
(xii)	The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)	
All transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable
accounting standards;
(xiv)	The company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review 2013.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order is not
applicable.
(xv)	According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, there are no personal expenses which
have been charged to the revenue account and the
Company has not entered into non- cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him.
(xvi)	The company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For AMK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 327817E
Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia
Partner
Membership No. 059363
UDIN:
Place: Kolkata
Date: June 29, 2020
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Annexure “B” to the
Independent Auditors’ Report
Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of IRIS Clothings Limited
referred to in paragraph 2 (g) of Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements in
our Report of even date.
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of IRIS Clothings Limited as of March 31, 2020 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on “the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards
on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India”.

For AMK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 327817E
Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia
Partner
Membership No. 059363
UDIN:
Place: Kolkata
Date: June 29, 2020
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Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2020

(Amount in `)
Note
No.

Particulars
I

ASSETS :

1

Non-current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Right of Use Assets
Capital work-in-progress
Other Intangible Assets
Financial Assets
Loans
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

2

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

2

272,157,928

138,472,968

148,539,588

2

68,388,467
506,791

104,331,336
229,627

140,000
246,948

3
4

7,230,890
2,044,011
350,328,087

6,725,760
1,980,398
251,740,089

4,748,086
639,526
154,314,148

5

307,570,253

232,602,676

110,331,731

6
7
8
9

115,190,219
327,420
22,377,659
411,948
1,195,388
18,434,017
465,506,904
815,834,991

95,822,425
453,384
20,968,374
1,297,360
1,317,313
12,037,766
364,499,298
616,239,387

105,411,657
1,319,414
17,294,484
94,500
1,569,822
7,523,005
243,544,613
397,858,761

2

Current Assets
Inventories
Financial Assets
Trade receivables
Cash & cash equivalents
Other Bank balances
Loans
Current Tax Assets (Net)
Other Current Assets

10
Total Assets

II
1

2

3

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:
Equity
Equity Share capital
Other Equity

11
12

46,611,790
275,036,300
321,648,090

46,611,790
239,204,013
285,815,803

28,100,000
73,205,488
101,305,488

Non-current Liabilities :
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Lease Liabilities
Provisions

13
14
15

44,005,898
70,423,102
114,429,000

39,711,100
39,711,100

62,742,376
1,777,345
64,519,721

16
17

202,440,743
6,951,202

161,466,535

147,101,775

4,176,223

-

137,559,468

101,449,412

64,198,750

2,423,475
24,874,576
5,508,437
379,757,901
815,834,991

18,515,779
5,104,535
290,712,484
616,239,387

17,985,326
2,660,888
86,813
232,033,552
397,858,761

Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade Payables
(A)	total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises;
(B)	total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Lease Liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions

18
19
20
21

Total Equity and Liabilities
Accounting Polices
For AMK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 327817E
Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia
M. No. : 059363
Place: Kolkata
Date: June 29, 2020
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1

Santosh Ladha
Managing Director
(DIN: 03585561)

Geeta Ladha
Whole Time Director
(DIN: 03585488)

Niraj Agarwal
CFO

Sweta Agarwal
Company Secretary

Statement of Profit & Loss

for the Year Ended on March 31, 2020

(Amount in `)
Sl.
Particulars
No.

Note
No.

For the
period ended
March 31, 2020

For the
period ended
March 31, 2019

I

Revenue From operations

22

607,427,003

620,468,402

II

Other Income

23

1,885,176

1,419,206

609,312,179

621,887,608

296,471,572

349,795,027

III

Total Income (I +II)

IV

EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed

24

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

25

28,248,497

42,107,362

"Changes in inventories of finished goods,
Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress"

26

(72,583,509)

(98,090,577)

Employee benefit expense

27

101,594,835

92,553,133

Finance costs

28

32,625,110

18,784,159

Depreciation and amortization expense

29

50,095,879

23,727,633

Other expenses

30

117,362,401

122,174,218

553,814,785

551,050,955

55,497,394

70,836,654

Total expenses (IV)
V

Profit(loss) before exceptional items and tax(III-IV)

VI

Exceptional items

VII

Profit/ (loss) before tax (V-VI)

VIII Tax Expenses
b) Deferred Tax
IX

Profit/(loss) for the period (VII-VIII)
Other Comprehensive Income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

XII

70,836,654

16,158,823

21,604,328

(63,613)

(1,340,872)

39,402,184

50,573,198

(3,569,896)

(388,485)

-

-

(3,569,896)

(388,485)

32

(b)Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

XI

-

55,497,394
31

a) Current Tax

X

-

-

-

35,832,288

50,184,713

1) Basic

8.45

12.94

2) Diluted

8.45

12.94

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X)
Earnings per equity share
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Accounting Polices
For AMK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 327817E
Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia
M. No. : 059363

1

Santosh Ladha
Managing Director
(DIN: 03585561)

Geeta Ladha
Whole Time Director
(DIN: 03585488)

Niraj Agarwal
CFO

Sweta Agarwal
Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata
Date: June 29, 2020
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Statement of Cash Flow
for the Year Ended on March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Particulars
(A)

(Amount in `)
Year ended
March 31, 2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before Tax and Extra-ordinary Items

55,497,394

70,836,654

50,095,879

23,727,633

Adjustments for:
- Depreciation
- Sundry Balances Written Off

(21)

3,128

- Finance Cost

32,625,110

18,784,159

- OCI Defined Benefit Scheme

(3,569,896)

(388,485)

- Interest Income

(1,563,083)

(1,313,956)

133,085,382

111,649,132

40,035,456

44,205,314

- Trade and other Receivables

(26,793,025)

(1,783,081)

- Inventories

(74,967,579)

(122,270,944)

71,360,234

31,800,421

(16,036,898)

(21,351,819)

55,323,336

10,448,602

(72,887,819)

(117,835,028)

1,563,083

1,313,956

(71,324,736)

(116,521,072)

-

134,325,602

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
Adjustments for:
- Trade Payables

Cash Generated from Operations :
- Direct Taxes Paid
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities
(B)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments (Net)
Interest Received
Net Cash used in Investing Activities

(C )

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share Capital
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings

40,974,208

14,364,760

9,907,339

(24,699,763)

Lease Rent

(2,381,001)

-

Interest Paid

(32,625,110)

(18,784,159)

15,875,436

105,206,440

Net Cash generated/(used) in Financing Activities

(125,964)

(866,030)

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents(A+B+C)

453,384

1,319,414

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents

327,420

453,384

This is the Cash Flow statement referred to in our Report of even date.
For AMK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 327817E
Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia
M. No. : 059363
Place: Kolkata
Date: June 29, 2020
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the Year Ended on March 31, 2020

(Amount in `)

a. Equity Share Capital
Particulars
Equity Share

Balance at the
beginning of the
reporting period
April 01, 2018

Changes in
equity share
capital during
the year

Balance at
the end of the
reporting period
March 31, 2019

28,100,000.00

18,511,790.00

46,611,790.00

Balance at the
beginning of the
reporting period
April 01, 2019

Particulars
Equity Share

46,611,790.00

Balance at the
Changes in
end of the
equity share
capital during reporting period
March 31, 2020
the year
-

46,611,790.00

Reserve and Surplus
Securities
Retained
Premium
Earnings
Reserve

Total

b. Other Equity
Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

2,007,700

Changes due to IND AS implementation

71,197,788

73,205,488

-

-

-

2,007,700

71,197,788

73,205,488

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

-

50,573,198

50,573,198

OCI Components of Remeasurements of the net defined
benefit Plans

-

(388,485)

(388,485)

121,382,501

239,204,013

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period
(01.04.2018)

Security Premium on the Equity Share Capital Issued

115,813,812

Balance at the end of the reporting period (31.03.2019)

117,821,512

115,813,812

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

-

39,402,184

39,402,184

OCI Components of Remeasurements of the net defined
benefit Plans

-

(3,569,896)

(3,569,896)

117,821,512

157,214,788

275,036,300

Balance at the end of the reporting period (31.03.2020)

For AMK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 327817E
Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia
M. No. : 059363

Santosh Ladha
Managing Director
(DIN: 03585561)

Geeta Ladha
Whole Time Director
(DIN: 03585488)

Niraj Agarwal
CFO

Sweta Agarwal
Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata
Date: June 29, 2020
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2020
1.

Corporate Information

	
IRIS Clothings Limited is a limited company
incorporated under the provision of the Companies Act,
1956 and domiciled in India. The registered office of
the company is at 103/24/1, Foreshore Road Shibpur
Howrah-711102 West-Bengal India. The Company is
engaged in manufacturing of Readymade Garments.

	Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised
into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:
•

 evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
L
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Company can access at reporting date.

•

 evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
L
included within level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

•

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
valuation of assets or liabilities.

	Its shares are listed on the National Stock Exchange
(NSE) Emerge Platform, India.

2. Statement of Compliance
	These financial statements are prepared and presented
in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules,
2016 notified under section 133 read with sub-section
(1) of section 210 A the Companies Act, 2013, the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act’’) and guidelines issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as applicable. In
addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
are also applied along with compliance with other
statutory promulgations require a different treatment.
	The financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2020 of the Company is the first financial statements
prepared in compliance with Ind AS.
	The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2018. The
financial statements up to the year ended March 31,
2019, were prepared in accordance with the accounting
standards notified under the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (“Previous GAAP”) and other
relevant provisions of the Act. The figures for the
year ended March 31, 2019 have, now been restated
under Ind AS to provide comparability. Refer Note 48
for the details of first-time adoption exemptions availed
by the Company.
2.1. Basis of Preparation
	
The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period.
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	The cost of unquoted investments included in Level
3 of fair value hierarchy approximate their fair value
because there is a wide range of possible fair value
measurements and the cost represents estimate of fair
value within that range.
2.2. Presentation of Financial Statements
	The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss
are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in
the Division II to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) applicable for the Companies preparing and
presenting their financial statements as per Ind AS. The
Statement of Cash Flows has prepared and presented
as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash
Flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to
items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and
Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are
presented by way of notes forming part of the financial
statements along with the other notes required to be
disclosed under the notified accounting Standards
and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
	Amounts in the financial statements are presented in
Indian Rupees (INR) and per share data are presented
in Indian Rupee to two decimal places.
2.3. Revenue Recognition
	Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable as reduced for estimated
customer credits and other similar allowances.

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2020
i)
Sales of goods
		
The Company recognises revenue from sale of
goods when the goods are delivered and titles
have been passed at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:
		

i)	the Company has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

		

ii)	
the Company retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

		

iii)	
the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

		

iv)	
it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company; and

		

v)	the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured reliably.

ii) Export Incentives
		
Revenue in respect of the export incentives is
recognized when no significant uncertainty exists
with regard to the amount to be realized and the
ultimate collection thereof.
iii) Insurance and Other Claims
		Revenue in respect of claims is recognized when
no significant uncertainty exists with regard to the
amount to be realized and the ultimate collection
thereof
iv) Interest and Dividend Income
		Interest income is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss and for all financial instruments
except for those classified as held for trading or
those measured or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) is measured using
the effective interest method (EIR).
		The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points
paid or received between parties to the contract
that are incremental and directly attributable to the
specific lending arrangement, transaction costs,

and all other premiums or discounts. For financial
assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognised
in profit or loss at initial recognition.
		The interest income is calculated by applying the
EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit
impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortised
cost of the financial asset before adjusting for
any expected credit loss allowance). For creditimpaired financial assets the interest income is
calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised
cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less the allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs). For financial
assets originated or purchased credit-impaired
(POCI) the EIR reflects the ECLs in determining the
future cash flows expected to be received from the
financial asset.
		
Dividend income is recognised when the
Company’s right to receive dividend is established
by the reporting date and no significant uncertainty
as to collectability exists.
v) Other Operational Revenue
		Other operational revenue represents income earned
from the activities incidental to the business and is
recognised when the right to receive the income is
established as per the terms of the contract.
2.4. Properties, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
	
PPE is recognised when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty
credits availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation
and cumulative impairment, if any. Cost includes
all direct cost related to the acquisition of PPE and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Company’s accounting policy.
	For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to
adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of PPE
measured as per Previous GAAP less accumulated
depreciation and cumulative impairment on the
transition date of April 1, 2018. In respect of revalued
assets, the value as determined by valuers as
reduced by accumulated depreciation and cumulative
impairment is taken as cost on transition date.
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Land and buildings held for use are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is
not depreciated.
	
PPE not ready for the intended use on the date
of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “capital work
in progress”.
	
Depreciation is recognised using reducing balance
method so as to write off the cost of the assets (other
than freehold land)) less their residual values over their
useful lives specified in Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013, or in case of assets where the useful life was
determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life
so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at
each financial year end to reflect expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied
in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual
values are also reviewed at each financial year end with
the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/
residual value is accounted on prospective basis.
	Depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned
assets is calculated pro rata to the period of use.
Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted
in future periods in such a manner that the revised
carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its
remaining useful life.
	An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised
in profit or loss.
2.5. Intangible Assets
	Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable
that the future economic benefits that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are
stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed,
if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative
impairment. Direct expenses and administrative and
other general overhead expenses that are specifically
attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are
allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the
intangible assets.
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Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on
the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible
assets under development”.
	
Intangible assets are amortised on straight line
basis over the estimated useful life. The method
of amortisation and useful life are reviewed at the
end of each accounting year with the effect of any
changes in the estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.
	
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
2.6.	Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets other
than Goodwill
	As at the end of each accounting year, the Company
reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
such indication exists, the PPE, investment property
and intangible assets are tested for impairment so as
to determine the impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and
the intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for
impairment each year.
	
Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is determined:
i)	in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of
the net selling price and the value in use; and
ii)	in the case of a cash generating unit (the smallest
identifiable Company of assets that generates
independent cash flows), at the higher of the
cash generating unit’s net selling price and the
value in use.
		Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a
pre tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2020
		
If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash
generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, such deficit is recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss
as impairment loss and the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For this purpose, the
impairment loss recognised in respect of a cash
generating unit is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
such cash generating unit and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets of the cash
generating unit on a pro-rata basis.
		When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash
generating unit), except for allocated goodwill, is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss is
recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
(other than impairment loss allocated to goodwill)
is recognised immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.
2.7. Inventories
	Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost is calculated on First in First Out (FIFO)
method except work in progress which is valued at raw
material cost plus conversion costs depending upon
the stage of completion. Cost comprises expenditure
incurred in the normal course of business in bringing
such inventories to its present location and condition
and includes, where applicable, appropriate overheads
based on normal level of activity. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price less estimated costs for
completion and sale.
	Obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories are
identified from time to time and, where necessary, a
provision is made for such inventories.
2.8. Employee Benefits
i)
Short Term Employee Benefits
		Employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve
months of rendering the service are classified as

short-term employee benefits and are expensed
in the period in which the employee renders the
related service. Liabilities recognised in respect of
short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for the related service.
ii)
		

Post-employment benefits:
a)	
Defined contribution plans: The Company’s
superannuation scheme, state governed
provident fund scheme, employee state
insurance scheme and employee pension
scheme are defined contribution plans. The
contribution paid/ payable under the schemes
is recognised during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

		

b)	
Defined benefit plans: The obligation in
respect of defined benefit plans, which cover
Gratuity are provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation at the end of each financial
year using project unit credit method. The
Company’s liability is actuarially determined
(using the Projected Unit Credit Method) at
the end of the year. Actuarial losses/gains
are recognised in the Other Comprehensive
Income in the year in which they arise.

			
Re-measurement,
comprising
actuarial
gains and losses, is reflected immediately
in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit
recognised in the Other Comprehensive
Income in the period in which they
occur.
Re-measurement recognised in
other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings, and will not
be reclassified to profit or loss.
			
Defined benefit
as follows:

costs

are

categorised

			

i)	Service cost (including current service
cost, past service cost, as well as
gain and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

			

ii)	Net interest expense or income; and

			iii)

Re-measurement.
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The Company presents the first two
components of defined benefit costs in
Statement of Profit and Loss in the line item
‘Employee Benefits Expense’.
			The present value of the defined benefit plan
liability is calculated using a discount rate,
which is determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds.
			The retirement benefit obligation, recognized
in the Balance Sheet, represents the
Company’s liability based on actuarial
valuation.
iii) Long term employee benefits:
		The obligation recognised in respect of long term
benefits such as long term compensated absences
is measured at present value of estimated future
cash flows expected to be made by the Company
and is recognised in a similar manner as in the
case of defined benefit plans vide (ii) (b) above.
iv) Termination benefits:
		Termination benefits such as compensation under
employee separation schemes are recognised
as expense when the Company’s offer of the
termination benefit is accepted or when the
Company recognises the related restructuring
costs whichever is earlier.
2.9. Leases
	
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies
to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment.
The Company uses significant judgement in assessing
the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the
applicable discount rate.
	The Company determines the lease term as the noncancellable period of a lease, together with both
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease
if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that
option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not
to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers
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all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Company to exercise the
option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option
to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease
term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period
of a lease.
	The discount rate is generally based on the incremental
borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or
for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.
Company as a lessee
	
The Company accounts for each lease component
within the contract as a lease separately from nonlease components of the contract and allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component
based on the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.
	
The
Company
recognises
right-of-use
asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset for
the lease term at the lease commencement date. The
cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception
shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which
it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-ofuse assets is depreciated using the straight-line method
from the commencement date over the shorter of lease
term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the
same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.
Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever
there is any indication that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
	
The Company measures the lease liability at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease. The lease

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2020
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company
uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with
reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a
lease-by-lease basis, may adopt either the incremental
borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental
borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease
payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease
payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of
a purchase option where the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise that option and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured
by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance
fixed lease payments. The company recognises the
amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to
modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset
and statement of profit and loss depending upon the
nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is
a further reduction in the measurement of the lease
liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount
of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.
Company as a Lessor
	At the inception of the lease the Company classifies
each of its leases as either an operating lease or
a finance lease. The Company recognises lease
payments received under operating leases as income
on a straight- line basis over the lease term. In case
of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over
the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant
periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in
the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor
it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately. It assesses the lease classification
of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to
the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short term
lease to which the Company applies the exemption
described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

Transition
	The Company has elected not to apply the requirements
of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all
assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases for which the underlying asset is of low value.
The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
2.10. Financial Instruments
	Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the Company’s balance sheet when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.
	
Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
	A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and
presented on net basis in the balance sheet when
there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the
recognised amounts and it is intended to either settle
on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
1) Financial Assets
		
a) Financial assets at amortised cost
			Financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective
is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

		

b)	Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
			Financial assets are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if these
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that business model are evaluated and
reported to the entity’s key management
personnel;

financial assets are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows that give
rise on specified dates to sole payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding and by selling financial assets.

c)	Debt instruments at amortised cost or
at FVTOCI
			
The Company assesses the classification
and measurement of a financial asset based
on the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the asset and the Company’s business
model for managing the asset.

•

the risks that affect the performance of
the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model)
and, in particular, the way in which those
risks are managed; and

•

 ow managers of the business
h
compensated
(e.g.
whether
compensation is based on the
value of the assets managed or on
contractual cash flows collected).

		

			For an asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost, its contractual terms
should give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding (SPPI).
			For an asset to be classified and measured
at FVTOCI, the asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and the contractual
terms of instrument give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. The Company has more
than one business model for managing its
financial instruments which reflect how the
Company manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The Company’s
business models determine whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling financial assets or both.
			
The Company considers all relevant
information available when making the
business model assessment. However, this
assessment is not performed on the basis
of scenarios that the Company does not
reasonably expect to occur, such as socalled ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios.
The Company takes into account all relevant
evidence available such as:
•

42

 ow the performance of the business
h
model and the financial assets held within

Iris Clothings Limited

are
the
fair
the

			The Company reassess its business models
each reporting period to determine whether
the business models have changed since
the preceding period. For the current and
prior reporting period the Company has not
identified a change in its business models.
			When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI
is derecognised, the cumulative gain/loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss.
			
In contrast, for an equity investment
designated as measured at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in
OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss but transferred within equity.
			
Debt instruments that are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are
subject to impairment.

		

d)	Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL)
			Financial assets are measured at fair value
through profit or loss unless it is measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition.
The transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2020
		e) De-recognition
			A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a Company
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:
•

 he rights to receive cash flows from the
T
asset have expired, or

•

The Company has transferred its rights
to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and

•

 ither (a) the Company has transferred
e
substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

			
The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Company
has retained.

2) Financial liabilities
a)	
Financial liabilities, including derivatives, which
are designated for measurement at FVTPL are
subsequently measured at fair value. Financial
guarantee contracts are subsequently measured
at the amount of impairment loss allowance or the
amount recognised at inception net of cumulative
amortisation, whichever is higher.

This is the case when the Company determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. The Company may apply
enforcement activities to financial assets written off.
Recoveries resulting from the Company’s enforcement
activities will result in impairment gains.
2.12.Impairment
	The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on
the following financial instruments that are not measured
at FVTPL:
•

Loans and advances to customers;

•

Debt investment securities;

•

Trade and other receivable;

•

Lease receivables;

•

Irrevocable loan commitments issued; and

•

Financial guarantee contracts issued.

Credit-impaired financial assets
	A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Credit-impaired financial assets are referred to as
Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit impairment includes
observable data about the following events:
•

s ignificant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

•

 breach of contract such as a default or past due
a
event;

•

the lender of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession that the lender would not otherwise
consider;

•

the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties; or

•

the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount
that reflects the incurred credit losses.

		
All other financial liabilities including loans and
borrowings are measured at amortised cost using
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.
b)	
A financial liability is derecognised when the
related obligation expires or is discharged or
cancelled.
2.11. Write Off
	
Loans and debt securities are written off when the
Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering
the financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it).

	
It may not be possible to identify a single discrete
event—instead, the combined effect of several events
may have caused financial assets to become creditAnnual Report 2019-20
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impaired. The Company assesses whether debt
instruments that are financial assets measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI are credit-impaired at each
reporting date. To assess if corporate debt instruments
are credit impaired, the Company considers factors
such as bond yields, credit ratings and the ability of the
borrower to raise funding.

	
Given that a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition is a relative measure, a given change,
in absolute terms, in the Probability of Default will be
more significant for a financial instrument with a lower
initial PD than compared to a financial instrument with a
higher PD.
	As a back-stop when loan asset not being a corporate

	A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession
is granted to the borrower due to a deterioration in the
borrower’s financial condition, unless there is evidence
that as a result of granting the concession the risk of
not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of
impairment.
	
For financial assets where concessions are
contemplated but not granted the asset is deemed
credit impaired when there is observable evidence of
credit-impairment including meeting the definition of
default. The definition of default (see below) includes
unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back-stop if
amounts are overdue for 90 days or more.
Significant increase in credit risk
	The Company monitors all financial assets and financial
guarantee contracts that are subject to the impairment
requirements to assess whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
If there has been a significant increase in credit risk the
Company will measure the loss allowance based on
lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.
	
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date based on the remaining maturity of the
instrument with the risk of a default occurring that was
anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current
reporting date when the financial instrument was
first recognised. In making this assessment, the
Company considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
based on the Company’s historical experience and
expert credit assessment.
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loans becomes 30 days past due, the Company
considers that a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred and the asset is in stage 2 of the impairment
model, i.e. the loss allowance is measured as the
lifetime ECL in respect of all retail assets. In respect
of the corporate loan assets, shifting to Stage 2 has
been rebutted using historical evidence from own
portfolio to a threshold of 60 days past due, which is
reviewed annually.
	Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets
	POCI financial assets are treated differently because the
asset is credit-impaired at initial recognition. For these
assets, the Company recognises all changes in lifetime
ECL since initial recognition as a loss allowance with
any changes recognised in profit or loss. A favourable
change for such assets creates an impairment gain.
Definition of default
	Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of
default. The definition of default is used in measuring
the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether
the loss allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL,
as default is a component of the probability of default
(PD) which affects both the measurement of ECLs and
the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.
	The Company considers the following as constituting
an event of default:
•

the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any
material credit obligation to the Company; or

•

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Company in full.

	
The definition of default is appropriately tailored
to reflect different characteristics of different types
of assets.

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2020
	When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligation, the Company takes into account both
qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information
assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example
in corporate lending a qualitative indicator used is
the admittance of bankruptcy petition by National
Company Law Tribunal, which is not relevant for retail
lending. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue
status and non-payment on another obligation of the
same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis. The
Company uses a variety of sources of information to
assess default which are either developed internally or
obtained from external sources. The definition of default
is applied consistently to all financial instruments unless
information becomes available that demonstrates that
another default definition is more appropriate for a
particular financial instrument. With the exception of
POCI financial assets (which are considered separately
below), ECLs are required to be measured through a
loss allowance at an amount equal to:
•

•

 2-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from
1
those default events on the financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date, (referred to as Stage 1); or
full lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all
possible default events over the life of the financial
instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

	A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a
financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition (and consequently to credit impaired
financial assets). For all other financial instruments,
ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the
12-month ECL.
	ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present
value of credit losses. These are measured as the
present value of the difference between the cash flows
due to the Company under the contract and the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive arising from
the weighting of multiple future economic scenarios,
discounted at the asset’s EIR.
•

for financial guarantee contracts, the ECL is the
difference between the expected payments to
reimburse the holder of the guaranteed debt

instrument less any amounts that the Company
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or
any other party.
		
The Company measures ECL on an individual
basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of loans
that share similar economic risk characteristics.
2.13. Modification and derecognition of financial assets
	
A modification of a financial asset occurs when the
contractual terms governing the cash flows of a
financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified
between initial recognition and maturity of the financial
asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing
of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a
future date. In addition, the introduction or adjustment of
existing covenants of an existing loan may constitute a
modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do
not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may affect
the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or
is not met (e.g. a change to the increase in the interest
rate that arises when covenants are breached).
	
The Company renegotiates loans to customers in
financial difficulty to maximise collection and minimise
the risk of default. A loan forbearance is granted in
cases where although the borrower made all reasonable
efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there
is a high risk of default or default has already happened
and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the
revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases
include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes
to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal
and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of
cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and
amendments to covenants.
	
When a financial asset is modified the Company
assesses whether this modification results in
derecognition. In accordance with the Company’s
policy a modification results in derecognition when it
gives rise to substantially different terms. To determine
if the modified terms are substantially different from
the original contractual terms the Company considers
the following:
•

 ualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows
Q
after modification are no longer SPPI,
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•

Change in currency or change of counterparty,

•

 The extent of change in interest rates, maturity,
covenants.

	If these do not clearly indicate a substantial modification,
then;
a)	In the case where the financial asset is derecognised
the loss allowance for ECL is remeasured at the
date of derecognition to determine the net carrying
amount of the asset at that date. The difference
between this revised carrying amount and the
fair value of the new financial asset with the new
terms will lead to a gain or loss on derecognition.
The new financial asset will have a loss allowance
measured based on 12-month ECL except in the
rare occasions where the new loan is considered
to be originated-credit impaired. This applies
only in the case where the fair value of the new
loan is recognised at a significant discount to its
revised par amount because there remains a high
risk of default which has not been reduced by the
modification. The Company monitors credit risk of
modified financial assets by evaluating qualitative
and quantitative information, such as if the borrower
is in past due status under the new terms.
b)	When the contractual terms of a financial asset
are modified and the modification does not result
in derecognition, the Company determines if
the financial asset’s credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition by comparing:
•

the remaining lifetime PD estimated based
on data at initial recognition and the original
contractual terms; with

•

the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date
based on the modified terms.

		For financial assets modified, where modification
did not result in derecognition, the estimate
of PD reflects the Company’s ability to collect
the modified cash flows taking into account
the Company’s previous experience of similar
forbearance action, as well as various behavioural
indicators, including the borrower’s payment
performance against the modified contractual
terms. If the credit risk remains significantly higher
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than what was expected at initial recognition the
loss allowance will continue to be measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL. The loss allowance
on forborne loans will generally only be measured
based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence
of the borrower’s improved repayment behaviour
following modification leading to a reversal of the
previous significant increase in credit risk.
		Where a modification does not lead to derecognition
the Company calculates the modification gain/
loss comparing the gross carrying amount before
and after the modification (excluding the ECL
allowance). Then the Company measures ECL
for the modified asset, where the expected cash
flows arising from the modified financial asset
are included in calculating the expected cash
shortfalls from the original asset.
		
The Company derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the asset’s
cash flows expire (including expiry arising from
a modification with substantially different terms),
or when the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
are transferred to another entity. If the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
		If the Company retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
		On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain/loss that had
been recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss, with the exception
of equity investment designated as measured at
FVTOCI, where the cumulative gain/loss previously
recognised in OCI is not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss.

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2020
		On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the
Company allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise under continuing involvement, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain/loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in
OCI is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts. This does not apply for equity
investments designated as measured at FVTOCI,
as the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised
in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss.
2.14.	Presentation of allowance for ECL in the Balance
Sheet
	Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement
of financial position as follows:
•

for financial assets measured at amortised cost:
as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of
the assets;

•

for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no loss
allowance is recognised in Balance Sheet as the
carrying amount is at fair value.

2.15.Government Grant:
	
The Company may receive government grants that
require compliance with certain conditions related to
the Company’s operating activities or are provided to
the Company by way of financial assistance on the
basis of certain qualifying criteria.
	
Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
upon the Company complying with the conditions
attached to the grant.

Accordingly, government grants:
(a) 	related to or used for assets, are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset.
(b) 	
related to incurring specific expenditures are
taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss on the
same basis and in the same periods as the
expenditures incurred.
(c) 	
by way of financial assistance on the basis of
certain qualifying criteria are recognised as they
become receivable.
	In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognised
is ultimately not received, it is treated as a change in
estimate and the amount cumulatively recognised is
expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
2.16. Cash and bank balances:
	Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits,
margin money deposits, earmarked balances with
banks and other bank balances which have restrictions
on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being
subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value,
are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents.
2.17. Borrowing costs:
	
Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated
using the effective interest method, finance charges
in respect of assets acquired on finance lease and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings, to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs.
	
Borrowing costs net of any investment income from
the temporary investment of related borrowings, that
are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part
of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready
for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an
asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
2.18. Share-based payment arrangements:
	The stock options granted to employees pursuant to
the Company’s Stock Options Schemes, are measured
Annual Report 2019-20
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at the fair value of the options at the grant date. The
fair value of the options is treated as discount and
accounted as employee compensation cost over the
vesting period on a straight-line basis. The amount
recognised as expense in each year is arrived at based

iii)	Financial statements of foreign operations whose
functional currency is different than Indian Rupees
are translated into Indian Rupees as follows:
		

A.	assets and liabilities for each Balance Sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that Balance Sheet;

		

B.	
income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates; and

		

C.	
all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign
currency translation reserve for subsequent
reclassification to profit or loss on disposal of
such foreign operations.

on the number of grants expected to vest. If a grant
lapses after the vesting period, the cumulative discount
recognised as expense in respect of such grant is
transferred to the general reserve within equity.
2.19.	Accounting and reporting of information for
Operating Segments:
	
Operating segments are those components of the
business

whose

operating

results

are

regularly

reviewed by the chief operating decision making body
in the Company to make decisions for performance
assessment and resource allocation. The reporting
of segment information is the same as provided to
the management for the purpose of the performance
assessment and resource allocation to the segments.
Segment accounting policies are in line with the
accounting policies of the Company.
2.20. Foreign currencies:
i)	The functional currency and presentation currency
of the Company is Indian Rupee. Functional
currency of the Company and foreign operations
has been determined based on the primary
economic environment in which the Company
and its foreign operations operate considering
the currency in which funds are generated, spent
and retained.
ii)	
Transactions

in

currencies

other

than

the

Company’s functional currency are recorded on
initial recognition using the exchange rate at the
transaction date. At each Balance Sheet date,
foreign currency monetary items are reported at
the prevailing closing spot rate. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange
differences that arise on settlement of monetary
items or on reporting of monetary items at each
Balance Sheet date at the closing spot rate are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which they arise.

48

Iris Clothings Limited

2.21. Taxation:
Current Tax:
	Tax on income for the current period is determined on
the basis of taxable income and computed in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961 and based on the expected outcome of
assessments/appeals.
	The Company irreversibly opted to pay the Current Tax
as per the Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Deferred Tax:
	Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Company’s financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in computation
of taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates
and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the
Balance Sheet date.
	
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences to the extent that is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2020
	
Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed
depreciation/business losses/losses under the head
“capital gains” are recognised and carried forward to
the extent of available taxable temporary differences or
where there is convincing other evidence that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax
assets in respect of unutilised tax credits which mainly
relate to minimum alternate tax are recognised to the
extent it is probable of such unutilised tax credits will
get realised.
	The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the end
of reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
	Transaction or event which is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or in
equity, is recorded along with the tax as applicable.
2.22.	Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets:
Provisions are recognised only when:
i)	a Company entity has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event; and
ii) 	
it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; and
iii)	a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation
	Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation and when the effect of
time value of money is material, the carrying amount of
the provision is the present value of those cash flows.
Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure
required to settle a provision is recognised only
when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will
be received.
Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:
i) 	
a present obligation arising from past events,
when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and

ii) 	
a present obligation arising from past events,
when no reliable estimate is possible.
		Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
		
Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received
under such contract, the present obligation
under the contract is recognised and measured as
a provision.
2.23. Commitment:
	
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual
expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:
a)	
estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided for;
b)	uncalled liability on shares and other investments
partly paid;
c)	
funding related
companies; and

commitment

to

associate

d)	other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the
extent they are considered material and relevant
in the opinion of management.
	
Other commitments related to sales/procurements
made in the normal course of business are not disclosed
to avoid excessive details.
2.24. Statement of cash flows:
	Statement of cash flows is prepared segregating the
cash flows into operating, investing and financing
activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported
using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the
effects of:
i) 	changes during the period in operating receivables
and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;
ii) 	non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions,
deferred taxes, unrealised gains and losses; and
iii)	
all other items for which the cash effects are
investing or financing cash flows.
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	Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances)
shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items
which are not available for general use as on the date
of Balance Sheet.
2.25. Earnings per share
	
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings
per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings
per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

the date of the financial statements. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful
lives of property, plant and equipment & intangible
assets, expected credit loss on loan books, future
obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, fair
value measurement etc. Difference, if any, between the
actual results and estimates is recognised in the period
in which the results are known.

	Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.27.	Operating cycle for current and non-current
classification:
	
Based on the nature of products / activities of the
Company entities and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash
equivalents, the Company has determined its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of
its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

2.26. Key source of estimation:
	The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with Ind AS requires that the management of the
Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of income and expenses of the
period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities
and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of

2.28.	Changes in Accounting Standard and recent
accounting pronouncements (New Accounting
Standards issued but not effective):
	
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new
standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been
applicable from April 1, 2020.
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(`)

Original
Cost as at
01.04.18

Computer Software

Description

539,000
539,000

(`)

Original
Cost as at
01.04.18

Other Intangible Assets

Land & Building

Description

-

1,834,700
71,223,115
116,725,687
6,786,496
4,371,060
14,276,928
11,033,836
226,251,822

(`)

Original
Cost as at
01.04.19

Right of Use Assets

Land
Building
Plant & Machinery
Electrical Installation
Office Equipments
Furniture Fittings
Vehicles

Description

516,000
516,000

Gross Block
Addition
Sales/
during the
Adjustyear
ments
during the
year
(`)
(`)

75,227,314
75,227,314

Gross Block
Addition
Sales/
during the
Adjustyear
ments
during the
year
(`)
(`)

31,152,640
97,815,374
18,550,225
1,070,617
27,910,862
203,437
176,703,155

Gross Block
Addition
Sales/
during the
Adjustyear
ments
during the
year
(`)
(`)

2. Property, Plant & Equipment

-

-

-

1,055,000
1,055,000

(`)

Total
Cost as at
31.03.2019

75,227,314
75,227,314

(`)

Total
Cost as at
31.03.2019

1,834,700
102,375,755
214,541,061
25,336,721
5,441,677
42,187,790
11,237,273
402,954,977

(`)

Total
Cost as at
31.03.2020

-

309,373
309,373

(`)

Up to
01.04.18

(`)

Up to
01.04.18

10,513,299
60,464,710
3,782,032
3,007,538
5,295,784
4,715,491
87,778,854

(`)

Up to
01.04.19

(`)
-

(`)
-

238,836
238,836

(`)

(`)
-

Depreciation
For the
Adjustment
Period

6,838,847
6,838,847

(`)

Depreciation
For the
Adjustment
Period

8,007,279
22,569,363
2,964,148
899,181
6,933,771
1,644,454
43,018,196

(`)

Depreciation
For the
Adjustment
Period

548,209
548,209

(`)

Up to
31.03.2019

6,838,847
6,838,847

(`)

Up to
31.03.2019

18,520,578
83,034,073
6,746,180
3,906,719
12,229,555
6,359,945
130,797,050

(`)

Up to
31.03.2020

(`)

506,791
506,791

(`)

229,627
229,627

(`)

NET BLOCK
As at
As at
31.03.2019
31.03.2018

68,388,467
68,388,467

(`)

-

1,834,700
60,709,816
56,260,977
3,004,464
1,363,522
8,981,144
6,318,345
138,472,968

(`)

NET BLOCK
As at
As at
31.03.2019
31.03.2018

1,834,700
83,855,177
131,506,988
18,590,541
1,534,958
29,958,235
4,877,328
272,157,928

(`)

NET BLOCK
As at
As at
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
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Computer Software

Description

414,200
414,200

(`)

Original
Cost as at
01.04.18

Other Intangible Assets

Land & Building

(`)

Original
Cost as at
01.04.18

124,800
124,800

Gross Block
Addition
Sales/
during the
Adjustyear
ments
during the
year
(`)
(`)

-

Gross Block
Addition
Sales/
during the
Adjustyear
ments
during the
year
(`)
(`)

7,345,839
438,526
932,065
4,802,462
13,518,892

Gross Block
Addition
Sales/
during the
Adjustyear
ments
during the
year
(`)
(`)

-

-

-

-

539,000
539,000

(`)

Total
Cost as at
31.03.2019

(`)

Total
Cost as at
31.03.2019

1,834,700
71,223,115
116,725,687
6,786,496
4,371,060
14,276,928
11,033,836
226,251,822

(`)

Total
Cost as at
31.03.2019

-

167,252
167,252

(`)

Up to
01.04.18

(`)

Up to
01.04.18

4,140,445
49,055,808
3,175,080
2,108,951
3,204,852
2,508,206
64,193,342

(`)

Up to
01.04.18

(`)
-

-

(`)
-

142,121
142,121

(`)

(`)
-

Depreciation
For the
Adjustment
Period

(`)

Depreciation
For the
Adjustment
Period

6,372,854
11,408,902
606,952
898,587
2,090,932
2,207,285
23,585,512

(`)

Depreciation
For the
Adjustment
Period

-

309,373
309,373

(`)

Up to
31.03.2019

(`)

Up to
31.03.2019

10,513,299
60,464,710
3,782,032
3,007,538
5,295,784
4,715,491
87,778,854

(`)

Up to
31.03.2019

-

(`)

229,627
229,627

(`)

246,948
246,948

(`)

NET BLOCK
As at
As at
31.03.2019
31.03.2018

(`)

-

1,834,700
67,082,670
60,324,040
3,172,890
1,330,044
6,269,614
8,525,630
148,539,588

(`)

NET BLOCK
As at
As at
31.03.2019
31.03.2018

1,834,700
60,709,816
56,260,977
3,004,464
1,363,522
8,981,144
6,318,345
138,472,968

(`)

NET BLOCK
As at
As at
31.03.2019
31.03.2018
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Description

-

1,834,700
71,223,115
109,379,848
6,347,970
3,438,995
9,474,466
11,033,836
212,732,930

(`)

Original
Cost as at
01.04.18

Right of Use Assets

Land
Building
Plant & Machinery
Electrical Installation
Office Equipments
Furniture Fittings
Vehicles

Description

Property, Plant & Equipment
Corporate Overview    
Financial Statements
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(`)

Original
Cost as at
01.04.18

Computer Software

Description

414,200
414,200

(`)

Original
Cost as at
01.04.18

Other Intangible Assets

Land & Building

Description

-

1,834,700
71,223,115
109,379,848
6,347,970
3,438,995
9,474,466
11,033,836
212,732,930

(`)

Original
Cost as at
01.04.18

Right of Use Assets

Land
Building
Plant & Machinery
Electrical Installation
Office Equipments
Furniture Fittings
Vehicles

Description

-

Gross Block
Addition
Sales/
during the
Adjustyear
ments
during the
year
(`)
(`)

-

Gross Block
Addition
Sales/
during the
Adjustyear
ments
during the
year
(`)
(`)

-

Gross Block
Addition
Sales/
during the
Adjustyear
ments
during the
year
(`)
(`)

Property, Plant & Equipment

-

-

-

-

414,200
414,200

(`)

Total
Cost as at
01.04.18

(`)

Total
Cost as at
01.04.18

1,834,700
71,223,115
109,379,848
6,347,970
3,438,995
9,474,466
11,033,836
212,732,930

(`)

Total
Cost as at
01.04.18

-

167,252
167,252

(`)

Up to
01.04.18

(`)

Up to
01.04.18

4,140,445
49,055,808
3,175,080
2,108,951
3,204,852
2,508,206
64,193,342

(`)

Up to
01.04.18

-

(`)
-

-

(`)
-

(`)
-

(`)
-

Depreciation
For the
Adjustment
Period

(`)

Depreciation
For the
Adjustment
Period

(`)

Depreciation
For the
Adjustment
Period

-

167,252
167,252

(`)

Up to
01.04.18

(`)

Up to
01.04.18

4,140,445
49,055,808
3,175,080
2,108,951
3,204,852
2,508,206
64,193,342

(`)

Up to
01.04.18

-

246,948
246,948

(`)
246,948
246,948

NET BLOCK
As at
01.04.18

(`)
-

1,834,700
67,082,670
60,324,040
3,172,890
1,330,044
6,269,614
8,525,630
148,539,588

(`)

NET BLOCK
As at
01.04.18

1,834,700
67,082,670
60,324,040
3,172,890
1,330,044
6,269,614
8,525,630
148,539,588

(`)

NET BLOCK
As at
As at
01.04.18
01.04.18
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3. Loans
Particulars
Security Deposits

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

7,230,890
7,230,890

6,725,760
6,725,760

4,748,086
4,748,086

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

2,044,011

1,980,398

639,526

2,044,011

1,980,398

639,526

-

-

-

2,044,011

1,980,398

639,526

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

36,300,091
90,067,925
176,862,159
4,340,079
307,570,254

34,072,715
98,379,905
95,966,671
4,183,385
232,602,675

7,587,549
46,481,649
49,774,349
6,488,184
110,331,731

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

115,190,219
115,190,219

95,822,425
95,822,425

105,411,657
105,411,657

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

260,683
66,737
327,420

205,305
248,079
453,384

1,191,455
127,959
1,319,414

4. Deferred Tax Assets (net)
Particulars
The major components of the Deferred Tax Liabilities /
(Assets) based on the tax effects of timing differences
are as follows:
Deferred Tax Assets
Difference in WDV of PPE as per the Companies Act,
2013 and Income Tax Act, 1961
Total Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference in WDV of PPE as per the Companies Act,
2013 and Income Tax Act, 1961
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities

5. Inventories
Particulars
Raw Materials
Work in Progress
Finished Goods
Stores and Spares

6. Trade Receivables
Particulars
Unsecured, considered good

7.

Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars
Balances with banks
- In current accounts
Cash on hand
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8. Bank balances other than above
Particulars
Special Term Deposit /Balance with banks held as
Margin Money

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

22,377,659

20,968,374

17,294,484

22,377,659

20,968,374

17,294,484

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

25,000

1,132,360

-

386,948
411,948

165,000
1,297,360

94,500
94,500

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

3,777,887
-

4,629,537
-

5,054,320
80,892

2,306,404
12,349,726
18,434,017

589,032
6,819,197
12,037,766

2,387,793
7,523,005

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

160,000,000

160,000,000

160,000,000

46,611,790

46,611,790

28,100,000

46,611,790

46,611,790

28,100,000

9. Loans
Particulars
Security Deposits to others
Other Loan
To Employee

10. Other Current Assets
Particulars
Other advances
Advance to Parties
Other Advances
Others
Prepaid Expenses
Balances with Government Dept

11. Equity Share Capital
Particulars
Authorised
Equity Share of ` 10/- par value
1,60,00,000 (as on 31.03.2019: 1,60,00,000)
(as on 01.04.2018: 1,60,00,000) Equity Share
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
Equity Share of ` 10/- par value
46,61,179 (as on 31.03.2019: 46,61,179)
(as on 01.04.2018: 28,10,000) Equity Share of ` 10/each fully paid-up

Notes:				
1.	The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of ` 10/-. Each holder of equity shares
is entitled to one vote per share.
2.	In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of
the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.However,no such preferential amounts exist currently.The distribution
will be in proportion to the number of shares held by the shareholders.
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3.

Details of Share holders holding more than 5% of total shares as on March 31,2020

Name of Shareholder

As on

As on

As on

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

No. of

% to

Shares Total Shares

No. of

% to

No. of

Shares Total Shares

Shares

% to
Total
Shares

Geeta Ladha
Santosh Ladha

2207547

47.36

2207547

47.36

2128600

75.75

345074

7.40

345074

7.40

305600

10.88

-

-

254400

5.46

-

-

Ajinkya Mercantile Pvt Ltd.
4.

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at March 31, 2020 is as below:

Name of Shareholder

Number of shares at the begnning

As on

As on

As on

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

No. of

Amount

No. of

Amount

No. of

Amount

Shares

(`)

Shares

(`)

Shares

(`)

4,661,179

46,611,790

2,810,000

28,100,000

2,691,900

26,919,000

-

-

1,851,179

18,511,790

118,100

1,181,000

4,661,179

46,611,790

4,661,179

46,611,790

2,810,000

28,100,000

Addition during the Year
Number of shares at the closing

12. Other Equity
Particulars

As on
March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

117,821,512

2,007,700

2,007,700

-

115,813,812

-

117,821,512

117,821,512

2,007,700

121,382,501

71,197,788

71,197,788

Add : Profit for the year

39,402,184

50,573,198

-

OCI Components of Remeasurements of the net
defined benefit Plans

(3,569,896)

(388,485)

-

157,214,788

121,382,501

71,197,788

275,036,300

239,204,013

73,205,488

Securities Premium
Balance as per last Account
Addition during the year
Retained Earnings
Surplus at the beginning of the year

Total

a) Securities Premium 				
		Securities premium is used to record premium amount received on issue of securities. The reserve can be used for
the purpose as given in provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Companies Act”).
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13. Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
Particulars
Secured
Term loans
Rupee Term Loan
From Bank
Vehicle Loan
From Bank
From Other Parties

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

41,983,809

36,200,000

57,696,748

2,022,089
44,005,898

341,837
3,169,263
39,711,100

5,045,628
62,742,376

March 31, 2020
-

Note:				
Rupee Term Loan				
	Primary: Pari-Passu Charge 1st charge over Property, Plant and Equipments of the Company both present and Future except property
at Srijan Industril Logistic Park (NH 6) , 4th Floor, Block-A, Warehouse unit-1, Village- Ankurhati, Near Saraswati Bridge, P.S.-Domjur,
Howrah which is exclusively financed by the Kotak Mahindra Bank against Term Loans of ` 2,35,00.000/Collateral: Pari-Passu Charge 2nd charge over the hypothecation of stocks and book debts both present and future.
Rupee Term Loan have been guaranteed by the directors.

Repayments of Rupee Term Loan				
` 3,00,00,000 Rupee Term Loan will be Repaid in 20 quarterly Instaslments commencing from June 30, 2017.
` 2,90,00,000 Rupee Term Loan will be Repaid in 20 quarterly Instaslments commencing from June 30, 2018.
` 2,35,00,000 Rupee Term Loan will be Repaid in 120 monthly Instaslments commencing from August 10, 2019.
Vehicle Loan				
Vehicle Loan has been secured against the hypothecation of Vehicles against which loan has been paid.

14. Financial -Non-Current
Particulars
Lease Liabilities

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

70,423,102
70,423,102

-

-

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

-

-

1,777,345
1,777,345

15. Provisions
Particulars
Provision for employee benefits (Gratuity)
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16. Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
Particulars
Loans repayable on demand
Secured
From Banks
Cash Credit
Unsecured
From Other Parties
Body Corpoorates
Directors

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

202,440,743

161,466,535

128,201,775

202,440,743

161,466,535

14,500,000
4,400,000
147,101,775

Note:			
Cash Credit:				
	Primary: Pari-Passu Charge 1st charge over the hypothecation of stocks and book debts and other current assets of the Company both
present and future
Collateral: Pari-Passu Charge 2nd charge over Property, Plant and Equipments of the Company both present and Future.
Cash Credit facilities has been guaranteed by the directors.

17. Trade payables
Particulars
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
Others
For Goods
For Capital Goods
For Others

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

6,951,202

4,176,223

-

115,224,671
5,425,603
16,909,194
137,559,468
144,510,670

84,694,435
9,009,654
7,745,323
101,449,412
105,625,635

60,511,880
3,686,870
64,198,750
64,198,750

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

2,423,475
2,423,475

-

-

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

16,547,069

10,934,528

12,603,015

312,775

400,504

448,139

1,355,746
6,658,986
24,874,576

6,208,839
971,908
18,515,779

4,934,172

18. Financial -Current
Particulars
Lease Liabilities

19. Other financial liabilities
Particulars
Current maturities of long-term debt
Interest accrued
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Others
Liabilities for Expenses
Gratuity Payable
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20. Other current liabilities
Particulars
Advances from Customers
Others
TDS and other taxes payable
Security Deposits

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

5,938

156,390

40,000

2,196,622
3,305,877
5,508,437

1,860,864
3,087,281
5,104,535

2,120,888
500,000
2,660,888

March 31, 2020

As on
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

-

-

86,813
86,813

21. Provisions
Particulars
Provision for employee benefits (for gratuity)

22. Revenue From operations
Particulars
(a)

Sale of products
- Traded goods
- Raw Material
- Others

(b) Other operating revenues

For the period ended
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019
26,789,641
25,878,712
552,477,362
605,145,715
2,281,288
607,427,003

20,432,907
15,564,345
582,977,059
618,974,311
1,494,092
620,468,402

23. Other Income
Particulars
Interest Income
From Bank
From Others
(b) Other non-operating income
Miscellaneous Receipts and Income
Discount Received
Insurance Claim Received

For the period ended
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019

(a)

1,563,083
81,439

1,313,956
-

203,286
14,773
22,595
1,885,176

63,616
41,634
1,419,206

24. Cost of Materials Consumed
Particulars
Opening Stock of Raw Materials
Add: Raw materials Purchased

Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials

For the period ended
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019
34,072,715
298,698,949
332,771,664
36,300,091
296,471,572

7,587,549
376,280,193
383,867,742
34,072,715
349,795,027
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25. Purchase of Stock-in-Trade (Readymade Garments)
Particulars
Opening Stock of Raw Materials

For the period ended
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019
28,248,497
28,248,497

42,107,362
42,107,362

26. Changes In Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-In-Trade and Work-in-Progress
Particulars
Opening Stock
Finished Goods
Work-in-Progress
Less : Closing Stock
Finished Goods
Work-in-Progress
Increase / Decrease in Stock

For the period ended
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019
95,966,671
98,379,905
194,346,575

49,774,349
46,481,649
96,255,999

176,862,159
90,067,925
266,930,085
(72,583,509)

95,966,671
98,379,905
194,346,575
(98,090,577)

27. Employee benefit expenses
Particulars
Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

For the period ended
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019
93,191,001
6,055,308
2,348,526
101,594,835

86,565,332
3,138,769
2,849,032
92,553,133

28. Finance Costs
Particulars
Interest
Banks
Others
Other Borrowing Costs

For the period ended
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019
23,329,009
9,035,016
261,085
32,625,110

16,137,482
1,813,200
833,477
18,784,159

29. Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Particulars

60

For the period ended
March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Depreciation

43,018,196

23,585,512

Amortisation

7,077,683

142,121

50,095,879

23,727,633
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30. Other Expenses
Particulars

For the period ended
March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Consumption of stores and spares part

38,330,308

40,213,678

Power and Fuel

12,217,591

9,963,962

6,622,265

8,267,556

565,815

88,000

Repairs to machinery

7,857,522

3,855,477

Repairs to others

1,393,263

342,390

Insurance

765,400

637,786

Rates and Taxes excluding taxes on Income

285,145

953,294

18,049,143

15,262,902

5,065,422

6,285,173

Rent
Repairs to buildings

Stiching, Printing, Embroidery and Other Expenses
Carriage Outward
Royalty & Knowhow

-

1,563,331

Commission Paid

7,626,281

10,157,369

Sales Promotion Expenses

4,026,523

6,451,043

110,000

-

Director's Sitting Fees
Payments to the Auditor
As Auditor

150,000

150,000

For Tax Audit

25,000

-

For Fees for Other Services (incl for issuing various certificates)

30,000

-

-

-

For Reimbursement of out of poket expenses
Donation

-

11,000

992,000

-

Discount Allowed

5,410,118

4,755,145

Legal & Professional Charges

3,146,911

2,751,749

Travelling and Conveyance

1,641,416

2,919,652

CSR Expenses

Security Charges
Miscellaneous Expenses
Sundry Debit Balance Adjusted
Net (gain)/loss on foreign currency transaction

661,801

526,033

2,429,481

8,117,395

(21)

3,128

(38,981)

(1,101,847)

117,362,401

122,174,218

31. Employee benefit expenses
Particulars
Current Tax
Income Tax for earlier years
Deferred Tax
Total Tax Charge
Current Tax
Deferred Tax

Year Ended
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019
1,61,58,823
(63,613)
1,60,95,210
1,61,58,823
(63,613)

2,16,04,328
(13,40,872)
2,02,63,456
2,16,04,328
(13,40,872)
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31.1 : Reconciliation of the Total Tax Charge
	The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had
been charged at India corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied
by India’s domestic tax rate for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 is, as follows:
Particulars
Accounting profit before tax
Applicable tax rate

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

5,54,97,392

7,08,36,654

25.17%

27.82%

1,39,67,584

1,97,06,757

-

-

2,44,507

2,72,775

-

-

Effects of Expenses Incurred In Previous Year but allowed in Current Year

(1,61,027)

8,00,973

Others

21,07,759

8,23,823

1,61,58,823

2,16,04,328

29.12%

30.50%

Computed tax expense
Tax effect of:
Exempted Income
Non deductible items
Adjustment on account of change on tax rate

Tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Effective tax rate
31.2 : Deferred Tax
Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

19,80,398

6,39,526

Credit / (charge) for equity instruments through OCI

-

-

Credit / (charge) for remeasurement of the defined benefit

-

-

63,613

13,40,872

20,44,011

19,80,398

Deferred tax asset/ liability (net)
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:
At the start of the year DTA / (DTL) (net)

Credit / (charge) to the statement of profit and loss
At the end of year DTA / (DTL) (net)

	As per the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Company is liable to pay income tax based on higher of regular income tax
payable or the amount payable based on the provisions applicable for Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT). MAT paid in
excess of regular income tax during a year can be carried forward for a period of fifteen years and can be offset against
future tax liabilities arising from regular income tax.
	As per the recent Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 the company has exercised the option to pay tax at
a lower rate of 22%. The Ordinance also amended the relevant section governing MAT provisions and provide that
companies opting for new tax rate would not be governed by MAT. The company has adopted the new tax rate starting
this financial year.
	The Company can claim tax exemptions/deductions under specific sections of the Income Tax Act, 1961 subject to
fulfilment of prescribed conditions, as may be applicable.
	Business loss can be carried forward for a maximum period of eight assessment years immediately succeeding the
assessment year to which the loss pertains. Unabsorbed depreciation can be carried forward for an indefinite period.
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32. Other Comprehensive Income
Year Ended
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019

Particulars
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the deferred benefit plans

(35,69,896)
(35,69,896)
-

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(3,88,485)
(3,88,485)
-

33. Earnings per share
Particulars

For the period ended
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019

Calculation

a) Basic Earnings Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders
per share
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding
Basic Earnings Per Share of ` 10/- each fully paid up
b) Diluted
Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders
Earnings per
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding
share
Diluted Earnings Per Share of ` 10/- each fully paid up

3,94,02,182
46,61,179
8.45
3,94,02,182
46,61,179
8.45

5,05,73,198
38,45,854
13
5,05,73,198
38,45,854
13.15

34. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)i.
		

Contingent Liabilities:
1. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (Net of Deposit) –
Particulars
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019
1)

Income Tax *

1,35,66,260

1,35,68,260

April 01, 2018
1,35,68,260

		
*The company had received a Demand Order dated March 16, 2016 for Assessment year 2013-14, under Section 143(3) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961, of ` 1,59,62,660/-, against which, on April 29, 2016, an Appeal has been filed before the Commissioner
of Income Tax Appeal. The company has already paid ` 23,94,400/- against the demand order. The matter is still pending before
the concerned authorities. (Net off Refunds and Self Assessment Tax)

		2. Guarantees
Particulars
Guarantees
		3. Commitment
Particulars
a.	Estimated Capital Commitments
(Net of advances)
b.	Other Commitments-i) Export Obligations
against import of capital goods under
EPCG Scheme

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

-

-

-

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

NIL

NIL

NIL

17,43,28,505

17,96,31,358

4,84,98,000
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35.	As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2015, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at
least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility
(CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are healthcare including preventive healthcare, providing safe drinking
water, sanitation facility, promoting education, old age home maintenance, environmental sustainability and promotion
and development of traditional art and handicrafts. A Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has formed by the
Company as per the Act.
	As per the provisions of the Act, amount not less than ` 9,48,611/- (year ended 31/03/2019 ` Nil) should have been
incurred during the year under CSR. The Company has incurred expenses amounting to ` 9,51,000/- (year ended March
31, 2019: ` Nil), in line with the CSR policy, which is in conformity with the activities specified in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013.
For the year ended
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019

Particulars
The amounts expended are as follows:
(i) Construction / acquisition of any assets
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above

9,51,000

-

36.	Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprise as per MSMED Act, 2006 as per the information
available with the Company:
Sl.
No.

Particulars

(a)

(i) 	Principal amount remaining unpaid at the
end of the accounting year
(ii) Interest due thereon
Interest paid by the buyer in terms of section
16 of MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amount
of the payment made to the suppliers beyond
the appointed date
Interest due and payable for the period of delay
in making the payments (which have been paid
but beyond the due date during the year) but
without adding interest specified under this Act
The amount of interest accrued and remaining
unpaid at the end of the financial year
The amount of further interest remaining due
and payable in succeeding years, until such
interest is actually paid

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

69,51,202

10,934,528

12,603,015

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

37. Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19 on Employee Benefits
(a) Defined Contribution Plans
		
The Company has recognized expenses towards the defined contribution plans as under:
a.
b.
c.
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Contribution to Superannuation fund
Contribution to Provident fund (Government)
Others
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March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

29,66,218
-

16,11,423
-
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(b) Defined Benefits Plan:
		
Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity) as per actuarial valuation on March 31, 2020
Particulars
I

II

III

IV

V

VI

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit
Obligations (DBO) during the year ended
March 31, 2020
1 	Present value of DBO at the beginning
of period
2 Current service cost
3 Interest cost
4 Past Service Cost
5 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses
6 Benefits paid
7 Present value of DBO at the end of period
Reconciliation of Fair Value of plan assets
during the year ended March 31, 2020
1 Plan assets at the beginning of period
2 Expected return on plan assets
3 Actuarial Gains/(Losses)
4 Company contribution
5 Benefits paid
6 Plan assets at the end of period
Reconciliation of fair value of assets and
obligation as at March 31, 2020
1 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation
2 Fair value on plan assets
3 Status [Surplus/(Deficit)]
4 Effect of Asset Ceiling / Onerous Liability
5 	Net assets / (liability) recognised in the
Balance Sheet
Expenses recognised during the year
1 Current service cost
2 Net Interest cost
3 Expected Return on Plan Assets
4 Past Service Cost
5 	Total expenses recognised in the
Statement of Profit & Loss
Other Comprehensive Income
Re measurements of the net defined
benefit liability/(assets)
Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year on PBO
Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year on Asset
Return on Plan Assets
(excluding Interest Income)
Total Remeasurement in OCI
Major category of plan assets as a % of
the total plan assets as at March 31, 2020
Fund Managed By LIC
Total

March 31, 2020

Gratuity (Funded)
March 31, 2019

-

-

37,82,321

18,64,158

7,53,744

30,51,671
2,91,239

13,83,806
1,43,540
3,90,817
37,82,321

8,71,243
58,415
1,80,756
18,64,158

35,61,673
1,06,86,904

April 01, 2018

28,10,413
2,53,820
-8,223
971908

2808081

40,27,918

28,10,413

-

1,06,86,904
40,27,918
66,58,986
66,58,986

37,82,321
28,10,413
9,71,908
9,71,908

18,64,158
18,64,158
18,64,158

30,51,671
37,419

13,83,806
1,43,540
15,27,346

8,71,243
58,415
9,29,658

-8,223

3,90,817
2,332

1,80,756
-

35,69,896

3,88,485

1,80,756

100%
100%

100%
100%

0%
0%

30,89,090

35,61,673

2,332
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Particulars
VII Actuarial assumptions
1 Discount rate (%)
2 Expected Rate of Return on Assets
3 Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) (%)
4 Mortality table (IALM) Table Ultimate

March 31, 2020

Gratuity (Funded)
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

7.00%
7.00%
6.00%
2012-14

7.70%
7.70%
6.00%
2012-14

7.75%
NA
6.00%
2006-08

March 31, 2020

Gratuity
March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

95,52,506
1,20,37,751
1,20,91,239
94,90,839

33,90,029
42,48,984
42,70,804
33,66,357

16,68,587
20,97,273
21,07,644
16,57,401

		Sensitivity analysis
Particulars
Discount Rate
Change in salary
increase

Change in Assumptions
1.00 % increase
1.00 % decrease
1.00 % increase
1.00 % decrease

		Sensitivity analysis
Year

Amount (`)
5,02,528
3,78,917
5,85,693
6,78,603
10,86,729
2,56,73,313

April 2020 – March 2021
April 2021 – March 2022
April 2022 – March 2023
April 2023 – March 2024
April 2024 – March 2025
April 2025 –

38. Segment information as per IND AS-108
	Operating segment are components of the Company whose operating results, the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(“CODM”) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance regularly
review and for which discrete financial information is available.
	The Company is engaged primarily on the business of “manufacturing & trading of readymade garments business”
only, taking into account the risks and returns, the organization structure and the internal reporting systems. All the
operations of the Company are in India. All non-current assets of the Company are located in India. Accordingly, there
are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 – “Operating segments”.

39. Lease Disclosures:
39.1	The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and
April 1, 2018
As at
Particulars
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019
April 01, 2018
Current Lease Liabilities
Non- Current Lease Liabilities
Total
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24,23,475
7,04,23,102
7,28,46,577

-

-

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2020
39.2	The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and
April 1, 2018
As at
Particulars
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019
April 01, 2018
Balance at the Beginning
Additions
Finance cost accrued during the period
Deletion
Payment of lease liabilities
Balance at the End

7,52,27,314
66,58,683

-

-90,39,420
7,28,46,577

-

39.3	The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020,
March 31, 2019 and April 1, 2018 on an undiscounted basis:
As at
Particulars
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019
April 01, 2018
Less than one year
One to five years
more than five years
Total

94,91,391
4,29,54,535
6,69,35,770
11,93,81,696

-

-

-

-

39.4	The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient
to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.
39.5	During the period ended March 31, 2020 the expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss includes:
(i) 	Rental Expenses recorded for Short-term lease ` 66,22,265/- for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Previous Year:
` 82,67,556/-)
(ii) 	Variable lease expense not forming part of lease liability of ` Nil (Previous Year: ` Nil)

40. Related Party information as per Ind AS 24.
I.
		

		

		

List of Related Party
(a) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Name of the Key Management Personnel
Mrs. Geeta Ladha
Mr. Santosh Ladha
Mr. Niraj Agarwal
Mrs. Sweta Agarwal

Relationship
Whole-time Director (w.e.f. 30.07.2018)
Managing Director (w.e.f. 27.07.2018)
Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 27.07.2018)
Company Secretary (w.e.f. 20.08.2018)

(b) Relative of the Key Managerial Personnel
Name of the Relative of KMP
Baldev Das Ladha
Kamala Devi Ladha

Relationship
Relative of KMP
Relative of KMP

(c) Entities in which Control of the Company and/or Key Management Personal exist
Name of the Relative of KMP
Relationship
Iris Fashions Pvt. Ltd
Control of KMP
Iris Apparels Pvt. Ltd
Control of KMP
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II.
		

Transaction with related parties
For the Financial year ended 2019-20
Sl. Name of the party

Nature of Relation

Nature of Transaction

1

Iris Fashions Pvt. Ltd.

Control of KMP

Machine Hire charges

2

Iris Apparels Pvt. Ltd.

Control of KMP

Machine Hire charges

3

Mrs. Geeta Ladha

Whole Time Director

Remuneration

1,20,00,000

4

Mr. Santosh Ladha

Managing Director

Remuneration

1,20,00,000

5

Mr. Niraj Agarwal

CFO

Remuneration

3,24,000

6

Mrs. Sweta Agarwal

Company Secretary

Remuneration

3,60,000

7

Mr. Baldev Das Ladha

Relative of KMP

Director’s Sitting Fees

Amount (`)
7,80,000
5,40,000

40,000

		For the Financial year ended 2018-19
Sl. Name of the party

III.
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Amount (`)

1

Iris Fashions Pvt. Ltd.

Control of KMP

Machine Hire charges

2

Iris Apparels Pvt. Ltd.

Control of KMP

Machine Hire charges

3

Mrs. Geeta Ladha(upto 31.07.2018)

Director

Director's Remuneration

24,00,000

4

Mrs. Geeta Ladha (w.e.f. 01.08.2018)

Whole Time Director

Director's Remuneration

80,00.000

5

Mr. Baldev Das Ladha (upto 31.07.2018) Director

Director's Remuneration

24,00,000

6

Mr. Baldev Das Ladha

Director

Loan from Director

7

Mr. Santosh Ladha (upto 31.07.2018)

Share Holder

Salary

28,00,000

8

Mr. Santosh Ladha

Managing Director

Director’s Remuneration

80,00,000

9

Mr. Santosh Ladha

Share Holder

Loan from Shareholder

2,00,000

10

Mrs. Kamala Devi Ladha

Relative of KMP

Loan from Shareholder

50,000

11

Mrs. Kamala Devi Ladha
(upto 31.07.2018)

Relative of KMP

Salary

7,80,000
5,40,000

20,000

4,00,000

Outstanding balance as on:
Sl. Name of the party

		

Nature of Relation Nature of Transaction

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

April 01, 2018

1

Iris Fashions Pvt. Ltd.

5,52,400

-

-

2

Iris Apparels Pvt. Ltd.

-

-

-

3

Mrs. Geeta Ladha

5,50,000

6,70,000

-

4

Mrs. Geeta Ladha (Loan from Director)

-

-

30,50,000

5

Mr. Santosh Ladha

5,50,000

7,00,000

-

6

Mr. Santosh Ladha (Loan from Director)

-

-

13,50,000

7

Mr. Niraj Agarwal

18,103

21,872

18,068

8

Mrs. Sweta Agarwal

22,128

29,850

-

9

Mr. Baldev Das Ladha

9,000

-

3,90,000

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis. None of the balances is secured.
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41. Financial Instruments
Financial Instruments by category
March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Financial assets/ liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

-

-

-

-

-

-

Financial assets designated
at fair value through other
Comprehensive Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,27,420

-

4,53,384

-

13,19,414

-

Particulars

April 01, 2018

Financial Assets designated at
Amortised Cost
Cash and Cash Equivalent
Bank balances other than above

2,23,77,659

-

2,09,68,374

-

1,72,94,484

-

-

-

-

-

-

11,51,90,219

-

9,58,22,425

76,42,838

-

80,23,120

Investment
Trade and Other Receivables
Loan

- 10,54,11,657

-

-

-

48,42,586

Financial Liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Financial Liabilities designated at
amortised cost
Borrowings
Lease Liabilities

24,64,46,641
7,28,46,577

Trade and Other payables

14,45,10,670

Other Financial Liabilities

2,48,74,576

- 20,11,77,635

- 20,98,44,151

-

-

-

-

-

-

- 10,56,25,635

-

6,41,98,750

-

-

-

1,79,85,326

-

1,85,15,779

Fair Value Hierarchy
Level-1 Quoted Price (unadjusted) is active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level-2 	Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level-1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e as prices) or indirectly (i.e.) derived from prices)
Level-3

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level-1 that are based on non-observable market data.

	The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as
of March 31, 2020:
Particulars

As of
March 31, 2020

Fair value measurement at end of the
reporting period/year using
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Assets
Investments in equity instruments
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
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	The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured atfair value on a recurring basis as of
March 31, 2019:
Particulars

As of
March 31, 2019

Fair value measurement at end of the
reporting period/year using
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Assets
Investments in equity instruments
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

 he following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as
T
of April 1, 2018:
Particulars

As of
April 01, 2018

Fair value measurement at end of the
reporting period/year using
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Assets
Investments in equity instruments
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

42. Financial risk management objective and
	The Company’s financial liabilities includes Loan and borrowings and Trade & other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s financial assets include trade & other
receivables, deposits and cash & cash equivalents.
	The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance. The Company uses derivative financial
instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. The Company does not acquire or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading or speculative purposes.
A.	
Credit Risk- A risk that counterparty may not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss is defined as Credit Risk. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating and
financial activities.
		Customer credit risk is managed by the respective marketing department subject to the Company’s established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. The Company reviews the
creditworthiness of these customers on an on-going basis. The Company estimates the expected credit loss on the
basis of past data, experience and policy laid down in this respect. The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of the trade receivables disclosed in Note 6 (Six) as the Company does not hold
any collateral as security. The Company has a practice to provide for doubtful debts as per its approved policy.
		The Company’s activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market Risk. The Company’s Board of Directors
review and discuss with the management on various risks face by the Company and also advise on the appropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Company. The Company’s Management provides assurance to
the Company’s Board of Directors that the Company’s risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s
policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
which are summarised below.
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		An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis. The calculation is based on
historical data of credit losses.
		The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross of allowances) has been considered from the date the invoice
falls due.
Past due
Total
Neither due
Up to
6 to
Above
nor impaired
Particulars
6 months
12 months
12 months
(including
unbilled)
Trade receivables
As at March 31, 2020
Secured
Unsecured
Total
As at March 31, 2019
Secured
Unsecured
Total
As at April 01, 2018
Secured
Unsecured
Total

11,51,90,219
11,51,90,219

11,48,22,080

3,68,139

-

9,58,22,425
9,58,22,425

9,57,86,993

35,432

-

9,58,22,425
9,58,22,425

10,54,11,657
10,54,11,657

10,53,32,225

79,432

-

10,54,11,657
10,54,11,657

11,51,90,219
11,51,90,219

B.	
Liquidity Risk- A risk that the Company may not be able to settle or meet its obligations at a reasonable price
is defined as liquidity risks. The Company’s finance department is responsible for managing liquidity, funding as
well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior
management. Management monitors the Company’s net liquidity position through expected cash flows.
		The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
cash credits, Term loans among others.
C.	
Market Risk- A risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of changes
in market prices is defined as Marketing Risk. Such changes in the value of financial instruments may result from
changes in the foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes.
		(i)	Foreign Currency Risk- A risk that the fair value or future value of the cash flows of a forex exposure will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates is defined as Foreign Currency Risk. The Company’s
exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s import and
export activities. The Company, as per its risk management policy, uses foreign exchange and other derivative
instruments primarily to hedge foreign exchange exposure. The management monitors the foreign exchange
fluctuations on a continuous basis.

			
			

Derivative instruments and un-hedged foreign currency exposure:
The Company does not enter into any derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

		(ii)	Interest rate risk- The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to
long-term debt.

			
Maturity profile of financial liabilities
			The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the
reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments.
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Financial Liabilities
As at March 31, 2020
Borrowings
Lease Liabilities
Trade Payables
Other financial liabilities
Total
As at March 31, 2019
Borrowings
Lease Liabilities
Trade Payables
Other financial liabilities
Total
As at April 1, 2018
Borrowings
Lease Liabilities
Trade Payables
Other financial liabilities
Total

Outstanding

0-1 year

2-5 year

5-10 year

Above
10 years

24,64,46,641
7,28,46,577
14,45,10,670
2,48,74,576
48,86,78,464

20,24,40,743
24,23,475
14,45,10,670
2,48,74,576
37,42,49,464

3,12,16,605
1,88,16,330
5,00,32,935

1,27,89,293
5,16,06,772
6,43,96,065

-

20,11,77,635
10,56,25,635
1,85,15,779
32,53,19,049

16,14,66,535
10,56,25,635
1,85,15,779
28,56,07,949

3,97,11,100
3,97,11,100

-

-

20,98,44,151
6,41,98,750
1,79,85,326
29,20,28,227

14,71,01,775
6,41,98,750
1,79,85,326
22,92,85,851

6,27,42,376
6,27,42,376

-

-

43. Capital management
	The Company’s objective when managing capital (defined as net debt and equity) is to safeguard the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
while protecting and strengthening the Balance Sheet through the appropriate balance of debt and equity funding.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in taking into consideration the economic
conditions and strategic objectives of the Company.
	For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other
equity reserves. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and
short-term deposits.
	In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches of the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing for
reported periods.

44. Estimation of Uncertainty Relating to Covid - 19
	The World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health emergency because of coronavirus (COVID – 19)
and classified its outbreak as a pandemic in March 2020. The Company is committed towards providing uninterrupted
supply of goods and services to its customer and has actively implemented business continuity plans including the option
of working from home facility. In assessing the impact of the pandemic on the Company’s operations and performance,
the Company has considered internal and external information up to the date of the approval of the financial statements
and based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Management is of the view that it will not be severely
impacted. The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of
these financial statements and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic
conditions COVID 19 Statements.
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45. Contribution to political parties during the year 2019-20 is ` Nil (previous year ` Nil)
46. 
There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund as at
March 31, 2020.

47. Events after the reporting period
There has been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in financial statements.

48. Explanation to transition to Ind AS
	As stated in Note 1, these are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the year
ended March 31, 2019, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act (“Previous GAAP”).
	The accounting policies set out in Note 1 have been applied in preparing these financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2020 including the comparative information for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the opening Ind AS
balance sheet on the date of transition i.e. April 01, 2018.
	In preparing the Ind AS balance sheet as at April 01, 2018 and in presenting the comparative information for the year
ended March 31, 2019, the Company has adjusted amounts reported previously in the financial statements prepared
in accordance with Previous GAAP. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its
financial statements prepared in accordance with Previous GAAP, and how the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS
has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.
Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions
	In preparing these financial statements, the Company has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and
mandatory exceptions.
A. Optional exemptions availed
		
1. Property plant and equipment
			
As per Ind AS 101 an entity may elect to:
			

(i) 	measure an item of property, plant and equipment at the date of transition at its fair value and use that fair
value as its deemed cost at that date

			

(ii) 	use a Previous GAAP revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment at or before the date of
transition as deemed cost at the date of the revaluation, provided the revaluation was, at the date of the
revaluation, broadly comparable to:

				− fair value;
				

			

− or cost or depreciated cost under Ind AS adjusted to reflect, for example, changes in a general or
specific price index.

(iii) 	use carrying values of property, plant and equipment and investment properties as on the date of
transition to Ind AS (which are measured in accordance with Previous GAAP) if there has been no change
in its functional currency on the date of transition.

				As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying values under Previous
GAAP for all the items of property, plant and equipment.
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B. Mandatory exceptions
		
1. Accounting estimates
			As per Ind AS 101, an entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS at the
end of the comparative period presented in the entity’s first Ind AS financial statements, as the case may be,
should be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with the Previous GAAP unless
there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.
			However, the estimates should be adjusted to reflect any differences in accounting policies.
			As per Ind AS 101, where application of Ind AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that were not
required under Previous GAAP, those estimates should be made to reflect conditions that existed at the date of
transition (for preparing opening Ind AS balance sheet) or at the end of the comparative period (for presenting
comparative information as per Ind AS).
			The Company’s estimates under Ind AS are consistent with the above requirement. Key estimates considered
in preparation of the financial statements that were not required under the Previous GAAP are listed below:
			

- Fair valuation of financial instruments carried at FVOCI.

			

- Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss.

			

- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost.

			

- Determination of OCI Components by re measurement of defined benefit plans

			

- Classification of equity and liability.

		
2. De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
			As per Ind AS 101, an entity should apply the derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments,
prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, an entity may
apply the derecognition requirements retrospectively from a date chosen by it if the information needed to
apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past transactions was
obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions.
		
3. Classification and measurement of financial assets
			Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances
existing as on the date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted
at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application
is impracticable.
			
Accordingly, the company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and
circumstances that exist on the date of transition.
			Reconciliation of equity*
Note

ASSETS :
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Other Intangible Assets
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As at date of transition April 01, 2018
Ind AS
Adjustment
Previous
GAAP# on transition
to Ind AS

14,85,39,588
1,40,000
2,46,948

-

14,85,39,588
1,40,000
2,46,948

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2020
Note

Financial Assets
Loans
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Current Assets
Inventories
Financial Assets
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash & cash equivalents
Other Bank balances
Loans
Current Tax Assets (Net)
Other Current Assets
Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:
Equity
Equity Share capital
Other Equity
Non-current Liabilities :
(a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade Payables
(A)	total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises;
(B)	total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total Equity and Liabilities

As at date of transition April 01, 2018
Ind AS
Adjustment
Previous
#
on transition
GAAP
to Ind AS
47,48,086
6,39,526
15,43,14,148

-

47,48,086
6,39,526
15,43,14,148

11,03,31,731

-

11,03,31,731

10,54,11,657
13,19,414
1,72,94,484
94,500
15,69,822
75,23,005
24,35,44,613
39,78,58,761

-

10,54,11,657
13,19,414
1,72,94,484
94,500
15,69,822
75,23,005
24,35,44,613
39,78,58,761

2,81,00,000
7,32,05,488
10,13,05,488

-

2,81,00,000
7,32,05,488
10,13,05,488

6,27,42,376
17,77,345
6,45,19,721

-

6,27,42,376
17,77,345
6,45,19,721

14,71,01,775

-

14,71,01,775

-

-

6,41,98,750

-

6,41,98,750

1,79,85,326
26,60,888
86,813
23,20,33,552
39,78,58,761

-

1,79,85,326
26,60,888
86,813
23,20,33,552
39,78,58,761
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			Reconciliation of equity*
Note

ASSETS :
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Other Intangible Assets
Financial Assets
Loans
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Current Assets
Inventories
Financial Assets
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash & cash equivalents
Other Bank balances
Loans
Current Tax Assets (Net)
Other Current Assets
Total Assets
Equity and Liabilities:
Equity
Equity Share capital
Other Equity
Non-current Liabilities :
(a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade Payables
(A) 	total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises;
(B) 	total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total Equity and Liabilities
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As at date of transition March 31, 2019
Ind AS
Adjustment
Previous
GAAP# on transition
to Ind AS

14,85,39,588
1,40,000
2,46,948

-

14,85,39,588
1,40,000
2,46,948

47,48,086
6,39,526
15,43,14,148

-

47,48,086
6,39,526
15,43,14,148

11,03,31,731

-

11,03,31,731

10,54,11,657
13,19,414
1,72,94,484
94,500
15,69,822
75,23,005
24,35,44,613
39,78,58,761

-

10,54,11,657
13,19,414
1,72,94,484
94,500
15,69,822
75,23,005
24,35,44,613
39,78,58,761

2,81,00,000
7,32,05,488
10,13,05,488

-

2,81,00,000
7,32,05,488
10,13,05,488

6,27,42,376
17,77,345
6,45,19,721

-

6,27,42,376
17,77,345
6,45,19,721

14,71,01,775

-

14,71,01,775

-

-

6,41,98,750

-

6,41,98,750

1,79,85,326
26,60,888
86,813
23,20,33,552
39,78,58,761

-

1,79,85,326
26,60,888
86,813
23,20,33,552
39,78,58,761

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2020
Note

ASSETS :
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Other Intangible Assets
Financial Assets
Loans
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Current Assets
Inventories
Financial Assets
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash & cash equivalents
Other Bank balances
Loans
Current Tax Assets (Net)
Other Current Assets
Total Assets
Equity and Liabilities:
Equity
Equity Share capital
Other Equity
Non-current Liabilities :
(a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade Payables
(A)	total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises;
(B) 	total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

As at date of transition March 31, 2019
Ind AS
Adjustment
Previous
#
on transition
GAAP
to Ind AS

13,84,72,968
10,43,31,336
2,29,627

-

13,84,72,968
10,43,31,336
2,29,627

67,25,760
19,80,398
25,17,40,089

-

67,25,760
19,80,398
25,17,40,089

23,26,02,675

-

23,26,02,675

9,58,22,425
4,53,384
2,09,68,374
12,97,360
13,17,313
1,20,37,766
36,44,99,298
61,62,39,387

-

9,58,22,425
4,53,384
2,09,68,374
12,97,360
13,17,313
1,20,37,766
36,44,99,298
61,62,39,387

4,66,11,790
23,92,04,013
28,58,15,803

-

4,66,11,790
23,92,04,013
28,58,15,803

3,97,11,100
3,97,11,100

-

3,97,11,100
3,97,11,100

16,14,66,535

-

16,14,66,535

41,76,223

-

41,76,223

10,14,49,412

-

10,14,49,412

1,85,15,779
51,04,535
29,07,12,484
61,62,39,387

-

1,85,15,779
51,04,535
29,07,12,484
61,62,39,387
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Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2019*
Adjustment
Previous
Note
GAAP# on transition
to Ind AS
(I)
(II)
(III)
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(IV)
V
VI
VII
VIII

Total Revenue from operations
Other Income
Total Income (I +II)
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Changes in inventories of finished
goods, Stock-in -Trade and
work-in-progress
Employee benefit expense
Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortisation
Other expenses
Total expenses (IV)
Profit(loss) before exceptional items
and tax(III-IV)
Exceptional items
Profit(loss) before tax(V-VI)
Tax Expenses
1) Current Tax
2) Income Tax for earlier years
3) Deferred Tax

IX
X
A(i)

Profit/(loss) for the period (VII-VIII)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
A(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (A)
B(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit
or loss
B(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be
reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (B)
Other Comprehensive Income (A+B)
XI
Total Comprehensive Income for
the period (IX+X) (Comprising Profit
(Loss) and other Comprehensive
Income for the period)
XII Earnings per equity share (FV ` 10/-)
1) Basic (`)
2) Diluted (`)

1

2

Ind AS

62,04,68,402
14,19,206
62,18,87,608

-

62,04,68,402
14,19,206
62,18,87,608

34,97,95,027
4,21,07,362
-9,80,90,577

-

34,97,95,027
4,21,07,362
-9,80,90,577

9,29,41,618
1,87,84,159
2,37,27,633
12,21,74,218
55,14,39,440
7,04,48,168

3,88,485
3,88,485
-3,88,485

9,33,30,103
1,87,84,159
2,37,27,633
12,21,74,218
55,18,27,925
7,00,59,683

7,04,48,168

-3,88,485

7,00,59,683

2,16,19,498
-13,42,288
2,02,77,210
5,01,70,958

-3,88,485

2,16,19,498

-

3,88,485

3,88,485

-

-

-

-

3,88,485
-

3,88,485

-

-

5,01,70,958

3,88,485
-

3,88,485
5,01,70,958

13.05
13.05

-0.11
-0.11

12.94
12.94

-13,42,288
2,02,77,210
4,97,82,473

			* Ind AS 101 requires reconciliations of its equity reported in accordance with previous GAAP to its equity in accordance
with Ind AS and a reconciliation to its total comprehensive income in accordance with Ind AS for the latest period in the
entity’s most recent annual financial statements. The Company has chosen to provide reconciliation of amount reported in
accordance with previous GAAP to amount reported under Ind AS for each line item of balance sheet and statement of profit
and loss as an additional disclosure
#
The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of
			

this note.
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Notes to the reconciliation
1) OCI Defined Benefit Plan
		Under Ind AS, all actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. Under Previous GAAP,
the Company recognised actuarial gains and losses in the statement of profit or loss. However, this has no major
impact on the total comprehensive income and total equity as on April 01, 2018 or as on March 31, 2019.
2) Other comprehensive income
		Under Previous GAAP, the Company did not present OCI separately. Hence, it has reconciled Previous GAAP profit
and loss to profit and loss as per Ind AS. Further, Previous GAAP profit and loss is reconciled to total comprehensive
income as per Ind AS.

49. Previous year figures are regrouped and reclassified to make them comparable with Ind AS presentation.
50..	The above financial statements have been reviewed by the audit committee and subsequently approved by the Board
of Directors at its meeting held on June 29, 2020.
As per our Report of even date
For AMK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 327817E
Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia
Membership No. 059363

Santosh Ladha
Managing Director
(DIN: 03585561)

Geeta Ladha
Whole Time Director
(DIN: 03585488)

Niraj Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Sweta Agarwal
Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata
Date: June 29, 2020

Annual Report 2019-20

79

Notice
Notice is hereby given that the 9th Annual General Meeting of the members of M/s. Iris Clothings Limited will be held on
Tuesday September 29, 2020 at 03.00 p.m. at the registered office of the Company at 103/24/1, Foreshore Road, Shibpur,
Howrah-711102 to transact following businesses:

Ordinary Business:
1.	To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20 together
with Report of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.
2.	To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Geeta Ladha (DIN: 03585488), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
herself for re-appointment as a Director.
For Iris Clothings Limited

Date: August 26, 2020		
Place: Howrah

Notes:
1.	
A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND
AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING (THE “MEETING”) IS ENTITLED
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/
HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE
A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The instrument
appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited at
the registered office of the company not less than fortyeight hours before the commencement of the meeting.
	A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members
not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
company carrying voting rights. A member holding
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
company carrying voting rights may appoint a single
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a
proxy for any other person or shareholder.
2.	Corporate members intending to send their authorized
representatives to attend the Meeting are requested
to send to company a certified copy of the Board
Resolution authorizing their representative to attend
and vote on their behalf at the meeting.
3.	Members are requested to bring their attendance slip
along with their copy of Annual Report to the meeting.
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Sd/Sweta Agarwal
(Company Secretary)

4.	
The Register of Directors and Key Management
Personnel and their Shareholding, maintained under
Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be
available for inspection by the members at the Annual
General Meeting.
5.	The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which
the directors are interested, maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be
available for inspection by the members at the Annual
General Meeting.
6.	In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such
joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be
entitled to vote.
7.	Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying
Notice are open for inspection by the members at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days
except Saturdays, during business hours up to the date
of the meeting.
8.	Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 42 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of
the Company will remain closed from Wednesday,
the September 23rd, 2020 to Tuesday, the 29th day of
September, 2020 (both days inclusive).

9.	
The Company has appointed M/s. CAMEO
CORPORATE SERVICES LTD (SEBI Registration No.
INR000003753), Chennai as its Registrars and Share
Transfer Agents for rendering the entire range of services
to the Shareholders of the Company. Accordingly,
all documents, transfers, demat request, change of
address intimation and other communication in relation
thereto with respect to shares in electronic and physical
form should be addressed to the Registrars directly
quoting Folio No., full name and name of the Company
as IRIS CLOTHINGS LIMITED.
10.	
Members holding shares in electronic form are
requested to intimate immediately any change in
their address or bank mandates to their Depository
participants with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to advise any change in their address or
bank mandates immediately to the Company / Cameo
Corporate Services Ltd.
11.	
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
has mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities
market. Members holding shares in electronic form
are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining
their demat accounts. Members holding shares in
physical form can submit their PAN to the Company/
Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
12.	SEBI has issued a circular dated June 8, 2018 that
securities of listed companies can be transferred only
in dematerialized form. In view of the above and to
avail various benefits of dematerialization, members
are advised to dematerialize the shares held by them in
physical form.
13.	Notice of the AGM along with attendance slip, proxy
form and annual report is being sent to all the members
whose name appears in the Register of Members as
on 21st August, 2020 at the e-mail IDs registered with
the Company/ Depository Participant(s). For members
who request for a hard copy and for those who have not
registered their email address, physical copies of the
same are being sent through the permitted mode.
14.	To support the “Green Initiative”, Members who have
not registered their email addresses are requested to

register the same with the Company’s Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent/their Depository Participants, in
respect of shares held in physical/electronic mode,
respectively. Copies of Annual Report will not be
distributed to the members at the venue of the AGM.
Members are requested to bring their copies of Annual
Report at the time of Annual General Meeting.
15.	
Additional information, pursuant to SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,
2015, in respect of the directors seeking appointment/
reappointment at the AGM is furnished as annexure
to the Notice. The directors have furnished consent/
declaration for their appointment/ reappointment as
required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder.
16.	
As per Notification issued by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs dated 19th March, 2015 with reference to the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014, Companies covered under Chapter XB and
Chapter XC as per SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 are
be exempted from e-voting provisions.
	Also, no such provision is available in SME Equity Listing
Agreement. Company is covered under Chapter XB as
it is a SME Company and listed on SME platform of NSE
of India Limited. Therefore, Company is not providing
e-voting facility to its shareholders.
17.	The facility for voting, through polling paper shall be
made available to the members at the AGM. Poll is
conducted under the supervision of the Scrutinizer
appointed for poll. Scrutinizer decision on validity of
vote will be final.
18.	
The Chairman shall, at the meeting, at the end of
discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be
held, allow voting with the assistance of Scrutinizer, by
use of Polling Paper for all the members.
19.	The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed
Mr. Rajesh Ghorawat, Practicing Company Secretary
as a Scrutinizer, for conducting poll during the Annual
General Meeting and to oversee voting process.
20.	The route map showing directions to reach the venue of
the Annual General Meeting is annexed.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
Name of Director

Geeta Ladha

Date of birth

07/06/1979

Nationality

Indian

Date of first appointment on the board

27/08/2011

Qualification

Commerce Graduate

Experience in functional area

She Has an experience of 16 years, with an unmatched
exuberance in providing creative and innovative ideas to
update the products and has been with the company
since its inception.

Relationship with other Directors

Wife of Mr. Santosh Ladha &
Daughter-in-law of Mr. Baldev Das Ladha

Shareholding in the Company

22,07,547

List of directorships held in other listed Companies

Nil

Committee membership in other listed Companies

Nil
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IRIS CLOTHINGS LTD.
103/24/1, Foreshore Road, Howrah - 711102
Office: +91 33-2640 4674, 33-2637 3856.
email: info@irisclothings.in
website : www.irisclothings.in
CIN: L18109WB2011PLC166895
GSTIN: 19AACCI6963K1Z0

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(Please fill in attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting Hall.)
I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company being held on Tuesday, September 29, 2020
at 03:00 P.M. at the registered office 103/24/1, Foreshore Road, Shibpur, Howrah-711102 and at any adjournment thereof.

DP-ID*
No. of shares held

Client ID*

Member / Proxy Name
(Please mention in block letters)

Member / Proxy Signature
* Applicable for Members holding Shares in electronic form.

THIS SECTION IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

IRIS CLOTHINGS LTD.
103/24/1, Foreshore Road, Howrah - 711102
Office: +91 33-2640 4674, 33-2637 3856.
email: info@irisclothings.in
website : www.irisclothings.in
CIN: L18109WB2011PLC166895
GSTIN: 19AACCI6963K1Z0

FORM NO MGT-11 - PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company being held on Tuesday, September 29, 2020
at 03:00 P.M. at the registered office 103/24/1, Foreshore Road, Shibpur, Howrah-711102 and at any adjournment thereof.

Name of the member(s)
Registered Address
E-mail id
Registered Folio No.
DP-ID

Client ID

I/We, being the member(s) holding

equity shares of Iris Clothings Limited hereby appoint:

Mr.
residing at
having email-id
as my/our proxy to vote for me/us
on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, September 29, 2020 at 03:00 P.M.
at the registered office 103/24/1, Foreshore Road, Shibpur, Howrah-711102 and any adjournment thereof, in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:
Item No.

Resolution

1.

Adoption of Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20.

2.

To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Geeta Ladha (DIN: 03585488), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers herself for re-appointment as a Director.

Revenue
Stamp of
Signature of first proxy holder

Signature of first proxy holder

Date:

, 2020

Re. 1/-

Signature of second proxy holder

Signature of third proxy holder

Notes:
•

 he Proxy form duly completed must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before
T
the commencement of the meeting.

•

This form of proxy will be valid only if it is duly complete in all respects, properly stamped and submitted as per the
applicable law. Incomplete form or form which remains unstamped or inadequately stamped or form upon which the
stamps have not been cancelled will be treated as invalid.

•

Undated proxy form will not be considered valid.

•

If Company receives multiple proxies for the same holdings of a member, the proxy which is dated last will be considered
valid; if they are not dated or bear the same date without specific mention of time, all such multiple proxies will be treated
as invalid.

•

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes. When a member
appoints a Proxy and both the member and Proxy attend the Meeting, the Proxy will stand automatically revoked.

•

In the case of joint-holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint-holders should
be stated.

•

This form of proxy shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorized in writing, or if the appointer is a body
corporate, be under its seal or be signed by an officer or an attorney duly authorized by it.

•

A proxy need not be a member of the Company and shall prove his identity at the time of attending the Meeting.
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